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(559) 884-2535

 (Registrant's Telephone Number, including Area Code)

      Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15 (d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant
was required to file reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    x  YES      ¨ 
NO   

      Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T
(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to submit and post such files).     YES  

x       NO  ¨  

      Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated
filer or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller
reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer
   ¨ 

Accelerated filer    ¨ Non-accelerated filer    ¨ 
(Do not check if a smaller reporting
company)

Smaller reporting company   
x 

      Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
YES    ¨         NO    x 

      As of February 8, 2012, 5,800,000 shares of the registrant's common stock were outstanding.
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Part I -- FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S&W SEED COMPANY
(A NEVADA CORPORATION)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)

December 31,     June 30,
2011 2011

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
     Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,808,285 $ 3,738,544 
     Accounts receivable, net 4,064,315 1,803,909 
     Inventories 3,919,025 5,664,119 
     Prepaid expenses and other current assets 58,398 58,451 
     Deferred tax asset 352,393 352,393 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 15,202,416 11,617,416 

Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 2,341,875 2,299,306 
Other intangibles, net 637,044 502,436 
Crop production costs 850,752 220,431 
Deferred tax asset - long term 56,996 517,672 
Other asset - long term 90,000 - 
TOTAL ASSETS $ 19,179,083 $ 15,157,261 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
     Accounts payable $ 2,651,445 $ 207,074 
     Accounts payable - related party 829,868 218,863 
     Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 102,374 169,060 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,583,687 594,997 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,583,687 594,997 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
     Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized;
          no shares issued and outstanding - - 
     Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized;
          5,800,000 issued and outstanding
          at December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2011 5,800 5,800 
     Additional paid-in capital 14,672,019 14,604,716 
     Retained earnings (deficit) 917,577 (48,252)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 15,595,396 14,562,264 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 19,179,083 $ 15,157,261 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

- 3 -

Edgar Filing: S&W Seed Co - Form 10-Q

4



S&W SEED COMPANY
(A NEVADA CORPORATION)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
December 31, December 31,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenue
     Seed revenue $ 4,073,865 $ 516,613 $ 9,959,177 $ 1,195,739 
     Milling and other revenue 654,164 393,043 884,531 647,060 

          Total revenue 4,728,029 909,656 10,843,708 1,842,799 

Cost of revenue
     Cost of seed revenue 2,960,857 369,734 7,258,802 893,513 
     Cost of milling and other revenue 243,379 77,207 309,821 115,248 
          Total cost of revenue 3,204,236 446,941 7,568,623 1,008,761 

Gross profit 1,523,793 462,715 3,275,085 834,038 

Operating expenses
     Selling, general and administrative expenses 761,765 490,851 1,469,718 1,025,413 
     Research and development expenses 61,629 127,850 154,505 262,128 
     Depreciation and amortization 65,516 60,306 136,611 119,697 

     Total operating expenses 888,910 679,007 1,760,834 1,407,238 

Income (loss) from operations 634,883 (216,292) 1,514,251 (573,200)

Other (income) expense
     Loss on disposal of fixed assets 26,362 - 26,362 5,706 
     Interest (income) expense, net 4,260 (3,165) 8,422 (7,143)

Net income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) 604,261 (213,127) 1,479,467 (571,763)
     Income tax expense (benefit) 161,197 (130,930) 513,638 (235,487)
Net income (loss) $ 443,064 $ (82,197) $ 965,829 $ (336,276)

Net income (loss) per common share:
     Basic $ 0.08 $ (0.01) $ 0.17 $ (0.06)
     Diluted $ 0.08 $ (0.01) $ 0.17 $ (0.06)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
     Basic 5,800,000 5,800,000 5,800,000 5,800,000 
     Diluted 5,804,207 5,800,000 5,817,006 5,800,000 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

- 4 -
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S&W SEED COMPANY
(A NEVADA CORPORATION)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(Unaudited)

Additional Retained Total
Common Stock Paid-In Earnings Stockholders'

Shares Amount Capital (Deficit) Equity
Balance, June 30, 2010 5,800,000 $ 5,800 $ 14,482,531 $ 763,196 $ 15,251,527 

Stock-based compensation - - 122,185 - 122,185 
Net loss for the year ended June 30, 2011 - - - (811,448) (811,448)
Balance, June 30, 2011 5,800,000 $ 5,800 $ 14,604,716 $ (48,252) $ 14,562,264 

Stock-based compensation - - 67,303 - 67,303 
Net income for the six months ended December 31, 2011 - - - 965,829 965,829 
Balance, December 31, 2011 5,800,000 $ 5,800 $ 14,672,019 $ 917,577 $ 15,595,396 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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S&W SEED COMPANY
(A NEVADA CORPORATION)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

Six Months Ended
December 31,

2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
     Net income (loss) $ 965,829 $ (336,276)
     Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) from operating activities to net 
          cash provided by (used in) operating activities
          Stock-based compensation 67,303 69,141 
          Change in allowance for doubtful accounts (3,587) - 
          Depreciation and amortization 136,611 119,697 
          Loss on disposal of fixed assets 26,362 5,706 
          Changes in:
               Accounts receivable (2,256,819) 445,889 
               Inventories 1,745,094 (4,114,939)
               Prepaid expenses and other current assets 53 (66,378)
               Crop production costs (630,321) - 
               Deferred tax asset 460,676 (235,487)
               Other asset - long term (90,000)
               Accounts payable 2,444,371 1,274,012 
               Accounts payable - related party 611,005 842,612 
               Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (66,686) 89,878 
                    Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3,409,891 (1,906,145)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
     Additions to property, plant and equipment (175,150) (231,982)
     Acquisition of customer list (165,000) - 

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, any guarantor may be released as a guarantor, and its
guarantee terminated:

� upon a sale or disposition of all or substantially all of its assets (whether by merger or otherwise), in accordance with the applicable
indenture, to any person other than us;

� if it merges with and into us, with us surviving the merger; or

� if we exercise our legal defeasance option or covenant defeasance option with respect to such series of debt securities, or if the
obligations under the applicable indenture are satisfied and discharged in accordance with the terms of the indenture.

10
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Payment of Debt Securities�Interest

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, we will pay interest on the debt securities on each
interest payment date to the person in whose name the debt securities are registered as of the close of business on the
regular record date relating to the interest payment date.

However, if we default in paying interest on the debt securities, we will pay defaulted interest in either of the two
following ways:

� First, we will propose to the indenture trustee a payment date for the defaulted interest. Next, the indenture trustee will choose a
special record date for determining which registered holders are entitled to the payment. The special record date will be between 10
and 15 days before the payment date we propose. Finally, we will pay the defaulted interest on the payment date to the registered
holders of the debt securities as of the close of business on the special record date.

� Alternatively, we can propose to the indenture trustee any other lawful manner of payment that is consistent with the requirements of
any securities exchange on which the debt securities are listed for trading. If the indenture trustee believes our proposal is
practicable, payment will be made as proposed.

Payment of Debt Securities�Principal

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, we will pay the principal of and premium, if any, on
the debt securities at stated maturity, upon redemption or otherwise, upon presentation of the debt securities at the
office of the indenture trustee, as our paying agent. Any other paying agent initially designated by us for the debt
securities of a particular series will be named in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Form; Transfers; Exchanges

The debt securities will be issued:

� only in fully registered form;

� without interest coupons; and

� unless otherwise specified in a prospectus supplement, in denominations that are integral multiples of $1,000.
Subject to the terms of the indentures and the limitations described in the applicable prospectus supplement, you may
have your debt securities divided into debt securities of smaller denominations (of at least $1,000) or combined into
debt securities of larger denominations, as long as the total principal amount is not changed. This is referred to as an
�exchange.�

Subject to the terms of the indentures and the limitations described in the applicable prospectus supplement, you may
exchange or transfer debt securities at the office of the indenture trustee. The indenture trustee acts as our agent for
registering the debt securities in the names of holders and transferring debt securities. We may appoint another agent
or act as our own agent for this purpose. The entity performing the role of maintaining the list of registered holders is
referred to as the �security registrar.� The security registrar will also perform transfers and exchanges.
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In our discretion, we may change the place for registration of transfer of the debt securities and may remove and/or
appoint one or more additional security registrars.

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, there will be no service charge for any transfer or
exchange of the debt securities, but you may be required to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other
governmental charge payable in connection with the transfer or exchange. We may block the transfer or

11
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exchange of (i) debt securities during a period of 15 days prior to giving any notice of redemption or (ii) any debt
securities selected for redemption in whole or in part, except for the unredeemed portion of any debt securities being
redeemed in part. All debt securities issued upon any transfer or exchange of debt securities will be valid obligations
of us, evidencing the same debt, and entitled to the same benefits under the applicable indenture, as the debt securities
surrendered upon such transfer or exchange.

Redemption

We will set forth the terms, if any, for redemption of the debt securities in the applicable prospectus
supplement. Unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, and except with respect to debt
securities redeemable at the option of the registered holder, debt securities will be redeemable upon notice by mail
between 15 and 60 days prior to the redemption date. If less than all of the debt securities of any series are to be
redeemed, the indenture trustee will select the debt securities to be redeemed. In the absence of any provision for
selection, the indenture trustee will choose a method of random selection it deems fair and appropriate.

Debt securities will cease to bear interest on the redemption date. We will pay the redemption price and any accrued
interest once you surrender the debt securities for redemption. If only a portion of your debt securities is redeemed, the
indenture trustee will deliver to you, without charge, new debt securities of the same series for the remaining portion.

Events of Default

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, an �event of default� occurs with respect to the debt
securities of any series if:

� we do not pay any interest on any debt securities of the applicable series within 30 days of the due date and the time for payment has
not been extended or deferred;

� we do not pay the principal of or premium, if any, on any debt securities of the applicable series on the due date and the time for
payment has not been extended or deferred;

� we do not deposit any sinking fund payment when due by the terms of the applicable debt securities;

� we remain in breach of a covenant or warranty (excluding covenants and warranties not applicable to the affected series) of the
applicable indenture for 60 days after we receive a written notice of default stating we are in breach and requiring remedy of the
breach (which notice must be sent by either the indenture trustee or the registered holders of at least 25% of the aggregate principal
amount of debt securities of the affected series);

� we file for bankruptcy or other specified events in bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or reorganization occur;

� we fail to convert or exchange any debt securities which are convertible into or exchangeable for our common shares or preferred
shares when required by the terms of such securities; or
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� any other event of default specified in the applicable indenture or prospectus supplement occurs.
No event of default with respect to a series of debt securities necessarily constitutes an event of default with respect to
the debt securities of any other series issued under the indentures.

Remedies

Acceleration. If an event of default occurs and is continuing with respect to any series of debt securities, then either
the indenture trustee or the registered holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of

12
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the outstanding debt securities of that series may declare the principal amount of all of the debt securities of that series
to be due and payable immediately. If an event of default relating to our bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or
reorganization occurs with respect to any series of debt securities, the principal amount of all of the debt securities of
that series will become automatically due and payable without any declaration or other action on the part of the
indenture trustee or any registered holder.

Rescission of Acceleration. After the declaration of acceleration has been made and before the indenture trustee has
obtained a judgment or decree for payment of the money due on any series of debt securities, the registered holders of
not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series may rescind and
annul the declaration of acceleration and its consequences if we pay or deposit with the indenture trustee a sum
sufficient to pay:

� all overdue interest;

� the principal and premium, if any, which have become due other than by the declaration of acceleration and overdue interest on these
amounts;

� interest on overdue interest to the extent lawful; and

� all amounts due to the indenture trustee under the indenture,
and all events of default with respect to the affected series, other than the nonpayment of the principal which has
become due solely by the declaration of acceleration, have been cured or waived as provided in the applicable
indenture.

For more information regarding the waiver of events of defaults, see ��Waiver of Default and of Compliance� below.

Control by Registered Holders; Limitations. Subject to the applicable indenture, if an event of default with respect to
the debt securities of any series occurs and is continuing, the registered holders of a majority in principal amount of
the outstanding debt securities of that series will have the right to:

� direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the indenture trustee; or

� exercise any trust or power conferred on the indenture trustee with respect to the debt securities of the affected series.
The rights of registered holders to make such direction are subject to the following limitations:

� such direction may not conflict with any law or the applicable indenture; and

�
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such holders must offer to the indenture trustee reasonable indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in
connection therewith.

The indenture trustee may also take any other action it deems proper which is consistent with the direction of the
registered holders.

Each indenture provides that no registered holder of the debt securities of any series will have any right to institute
any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to the indenture for the appointment of a receiver or for any other
remedy under the indenture, unless:

� that registered holder has previously given the indenture trustee written notice of a continuing event of default;

� the registered holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of that series have made
written requests to the indenture trustee to institute proceedings in respect of that event of default and have offered the indenture
trustee reasonable indemnity against costs, expenses and liabilities incurred in complying with the request; and

13
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� for 60 days after receipt of the notice, the indenture trustee has failed to institute a proceeding and no direction inconsistent with the
request has been given to the indenture trustee during the 60-day period by the registered holders of a majority in aggregate principal
amount of outstanding debt securities of that series.

No registered holder will be entitled to institute any action if and to the extent that the action would disturb or
prejudice the rights of other registered holders. However, each registered holder has an absolute and unconditional
right to receive payment on the debt securities when due and to bring a suit to enforce that right.

Notice of Default

The indenture trustee is required, under each indenture, to give the registered holders of the debt securities notice of
any default under the indenture to the extent required by the Trust Indenture Act, unless the default has been cured or
waived, except that in the case of an event of default due to our failure to deposit any sinking fund payment when due,
no notice shall be given to the registered holders until at least 60 days after the occurrence of the default. The Trust
Indenture Act currently permits the indenture trustee to withhold notices of default (except for certain payment
defaults) if the indenture trustee in good faith determines the withholding of the notice to be in the interests of the
registered holders.

We will furnish the indenture trustee with an annual statement as to our compliance with the conditions and covenants
in the indentures.

Waiver of Default and of Compliance

The registered holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of any affected
series may waive, on behalf of the registered holders of all debt securities of such series, any past default under the
applicable indenture, except a default in the payment of principal, premium, if any, or interest, or a default with
respect to compliance with certain provisions of the indenture that cannot be amended without the consent of each
registered holder of the outstanding debt securities. Any such waiver will cure the default or event of default.

Covenants

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, the covenants described below apply to any and all
series of debt securities. We will describe any additional covenants for a particular series of debt securities in the
applicable prospectus supplement.

Payment of Principal, Premium and Interest. We, for the benefit of each series of debt securities, will warrant to duly
and punctually pay or cause to be paid the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, the debt securities of that
series in accordance with the terms of such securities and the applicable indenture.

Maintenance of Office or Agency. We will maintain for each series of debt securities an office or agency where
securities of that series may be presented or surrendered for payment or for registration of transfer, exchange or
conversion and where notices and demands on us may be served. We will give prompt written notice to the indenture
trustee of the location, and any change in the location, of such office or agency.

Money for Securities Payments to be Held in Trust. If at any time we act as our own paying agent with respect to any
series of debt securities, we will, on or before each due date of the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on,
any of the debt securities of that series, segregate and hold in trust for the benefit of the persons entitled thereto a sum
sufficient to pay the principal and premium, if any, and interest becoming due until such sums are paid to such persons
or otherwise disposed of as provided in the applicable indenture, and we will
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promptly notify the indenture trustee of our action or failure to so act. Whenever we have one or more paying agents
for any series of debt securities, we will, prior to each due date of the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest
on, any debt securities of that series, deposit with a paying agent a sum sufficient to pay such amount, such sum to be
held as provided by the Trust Indenture Act, and (unless such paying agent is the indenture trustee) we will promptly
notify the indenture trustee of our action or failure to so act.

Statement by Officers as to Default. We will deliver to the indenture trustee, within 120 calendar days after the end of
each fiscal year ending after the first date any series of debt securities issued under the indenture is outstanding, an
officers� certificate stating whether or not, to the knowledge of such person after due inquiry, we are in default in the
performance and observance of any of the terms, provisions and conditions of the indenture (without regard to any
grace period or requirement to provide notice) and, if we are in default, specifying all such defaults and the nature and
status of such defaults as to which such person has knowledge.

Existence. Subject to Article 8 of the indenture (�Consolidation, Merger, Conveyance, Transfer or Lease�), we will do or
cause to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep in full force and effect our existence, rights (charter and
statutory) and franchises; provided, however, that we will not be required to preserve any such right or franchise if our
board of directors determines that the preservation of such right or franchise is no longer desirable in the conduct of
our business and that the loss of such right or franchise will not result in a material adverse effect to the holders of the
debt securities.

Maintenance of Properties. We will cause all properties used or useful in the conduct of our business to be maintained
and kept in good condition, repair and working order and supplied with all necessary equipment so that we may
properly and advantageously conduct our business at all times; provided, however, that we will not be prevented from
discontinuing the operation or maintenance of any of such properties if such discontinuance is, in our judgment,
desirable in the conduct of our business and not disadvantageous in any material respect to the holders of the debt
securities.

Payment of Taxes and Other Claims. We will pay or discharge or cause to be paid or discharged, before the same
becomes delinquent, all material taxes, assessments and governmental charges imposed on us upon our income,
profits or property and all lawful claims for labor, materials and supplies which, if unpaid, could by law become a
material lien upon our property, except to the extent that we are contesting any such tax, assessment, charge or claim
in good faith.

Consolidation, Merger, Conveyance, Transfer or Lease. We will not consolidate with or merge into any other entity,
or convey, transfer or lease all or substantially all of our properties and assets to any entity, unless:

� the entity formed by the consolidation or into which we are merged, or the entity which acquires or leases all or substantially all of
our property and assets, is an entity organized and existing under the laws of the United States or any state of the United States or the
District of Columbia and expressly assumes, by supplemental indenture, the due and punctual payment of the principal of, and
premium, if any, and interest on, all the outstanding debt securities and the performance of all of our covenants under the applicable
indenture;

� immediately after giving effect to the transaction, no event of default, and no event which after notice or lapse of time or both would
become an event of default, will have occurred and be continuing; and
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� all other conditions specified in the applicable indenture are met.
Modification of Indentures

Without Registered Holder Consent. We and the applicable indenture trustee may, without the consent of any
registered holders of the debt securities, enter into one or more supplemental indentures for any of the following
purposes:

� to evidence the succession of another entity to us;
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� to add one or more covenants or other provisions for the benefit of the registered holders of all or any series of debt securities, or to
surrender any right or power conferred upon us;

� to add any additional events of default for all or any series of debt securities;

� to provide for the issuance of bearer securities or to provide for the issuance of uncertificated debt securities and to make all
appropriate changes for such purpose;

� to change or eliminate any provision of the indenture or to add any new provision to the indenture, provided that such change,
elimination or addition (i) neither applies to any debt security of any series created prior to the execution of such supplemental
indenture and entitled to the benefit of such provision nor modifies the rights of any registered holder of any such debt security with
respect to such provision or (ii) becomes effective only when there is no debt security outstanding;

� to secure the debt securities of any series;

� to establish the form or terms of debt securities of any series as permitted by the indenture;

� to evidence and provide for the acceptance of appointment of a separate or successor indenture trustee;

� to provide holders with rights to convert their debt securities into our common shares or preferred shares;

� to cure any ambiguity, defect or inconsistency or to make any other changes that do not adversely affect the interests of the registered
holders in any material respect; or

� to add any subsidiary as a guarantor or to remove a guarantor in accordance with the terms of the applicable indenture.
With Registered Holder Consent. We and the applicable indenture trustee may, with some exceptions, amend or
modify the applicable indenture with the consent of the registered holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal
amount of the debt securities of all series affected by the amendment or modification, voting as one class. However,
no amendment or modification may, without the consent of each registered holder of outstanding debt securities
affected by such amendment or modification:

� change the stated maturity of the principal of, or premium, if any, and interest on, any debt securities (other than pursuant to the
terms of the debt securities), or reduce the principal amount, premium, if any, or interest payable or change the currency in which
any debt securities are payable, or impair the right of the registered holder to bring suit to enforce any payment;

� reduce the percentage of registered holders whose consent is required for any supplemental indenture or any waiver of compliance
with certain provisions of the indenture or certain defaults under the indenture;

� modify certain provisions of the indenture relating to supplemental indentures and waivers of certain covenants and past defaults; or
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� make any change that adversely affects the right to convert any convertible debt securities or decrease the conversion rate or
increase the conversion price of any convertible debt securities.

A supplemental indenture which changes or eliminates any provision of the applicable indenture expressly included
solely for the benefit of registered holders of debt securities of one or more series will be deemed not to affect the
rights under the indenture of the registered holders of debt securities of any other series.

Miscellaneous

The indentures provide that certain of the debt securities, including those for which payment or redemption money has
been deposited or set aside in trust, will not be deemed to be �outstanding� in determining whether
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the registered holders of the requisite principal amount of the outstanding debt securities have given or taken any
demand, direction, consent or other action under the applicable indenture as of any date, or are present at a meeting of
registered holders for quorum purposes.

We will be entitled to set any day as a record date for the purpose of determining the registered holders of outstanding
debt securities of any series entitled to give or take any demand, direction, consent or other action under the
indentures, in the manner and subject to the limitations provided in the indentures. In some circumstances, the
indenture trustee also will be entitled to set a record date for action by registered holders. If a record date is set for any
action to be taken by registered holders of particular debt securities, the action may be taken only by persons who are
registered holders of the respective debt securities on the record date.

Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance

The indentures provide, unless the terms of the particular series of debt securities state otherwise, that we may, upon
satisfying several conditions, cause ourselves to be:

� discharged from our obligations, with some exceptions, with respect to any series of debt securities, which we refer to as �defeasance;�
or

� released from our obligations under specified covenants with respect to any series of debt securities, which we refer to as �covenant
defeasance.�

One condition that we must satisfy in connection with any defeasance is the irrevocable deposit with the indenture
trustee, in trust, of money or government obligations which, through the scheduled payment of principal and interest
on those obligations, would provide sufficient funds to pay the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on,
those debt securities on the maturity dates of the payments or upon redemption. In addition, we must deliver to the
indenture trustee an opinion of counsel confirming that there will be no federal income tax consequences to the
holders of the debt securities as a result of the defeasance and an officers� certificate confirming, if applicable, that the
securities will not be delisted.

The indentures permit defeasance with respect to any series of debt securities even if a prior covenant defeasance has
occurred with respect to the debt securities of that series. Following a defeasance, payment of the debt securities that
were defeased may not be accelerated because of an event of default. Following a covenant defeasance, payment of
the debt securities may not be accelerated by reference to the specified covenants affected by the covenant
defeasance. However, if acceleration were to occur by reason of another event of default, the realizable value at the
acceleration date of the cash and government obligations in the defeasance trust could be less than the principal,
premium, if any, and interest then due on the series of debt securities, since the required deposit in the defeasance trust
would be based upon scheduled cash flows rather than market value, which would vary depending upon interest rates
and other factors.

Resignation and Removal of an Indenture Trustee; Deemed Resignation

An indenture trustee, once selected and duly qualified, may resign at any time by giving written notice to us. An
indenture trustee may also be removed by act of the registered holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of
the then outstanding debt securities of any series. No resignation or removal of an indenture trustee and no
appointment of a successor indenture trustee will become effective until the acceptance of appointment by a successor
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indenture trustee in accordance with the requirements of the applicable indenture. Under some circumstances, we may
appoint a successor indenture trustee and, if the successor indenture trustee accepts such appointment, the indenture
trustee will be deemed to have resigned.

Subordination

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, any series of subordinated debt securities issued
under this prospectus will be subordinate and junior in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all
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of our existing and future senior indebtedness. However, our obligation to pay the principal of, and premium, if any,
and interest on, the subordinated debt securities will not otherwise be affected.

If our assets are distributed upon our dissolution, winding-up, liquidation or reorganization, we must pay all of our
senior indebtedness in full before we make any payment on account of the principal of, or premium, if any, and
interest on, any subordinated debt securities. If, in connection with our dissolution, winding-up, liquidation or
reorganization, any payment or distribution is received by the subordinated debt indenture trustee or by the holders of
the subordinated debt securities before we have paid all of our senior indebtedness in full, such payment or
distribution must be paid over or delivered to the holders of any unpaid senior indebtedness or applied to the
repayment of the unpaid senior indebtedness.

If any of the subordinated debt securities are declared due and payable before their stated maturity, the holders of our
senior indebtedness will be entitled to receive payment in full of their senior indebtedness before the holders of the
subordinated debt securities will be entitled to receive any payment on account of the principal of, or premium, if any,
and interest on, the subordinated debt securities.

In the event of a default by us in the payment of amounts due on any of our senior indebtedness, we may not make any
payment on account of the principal of, or premium, if any, or interest on, the subordinated debt securities until such
default has been cured or waived.

Due to the subordination feature of the subordinated debt securities, if our assets are distributed upon our dissolution,
winding-up, liquidation or reorganization, some or all of the holders of our senior indebtedness may recover more,
ratably, than holders of the subordinated debt securities. If we issue a series of subordinated debt securities under this
prospectus, the applicable prospectus supplement will set forth the aggregate amount of senior indebtedness
outstanding as of a recent date and will describe any limitation on the issuance of additional senior indebtedness or
state that there is no such limitation.

Book-Entry, Delivery and Form

The debt securities issued hereunder may be issued in book-entry form and may be represented by one or more notes
in registered global form that are deposited with or on behalf of a depositary. The specific terms of the depositary
arrangement will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. We anticipate that the following provisions
generally will apply to such depositary arrangement.

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, the global notes will be deposited with the indenture
trustee as custodian for The Depository Trust Company (�DTC�) and will be registered in the name of a nominee of
DTC. DTC will maintain the global notes through its book-entry facilities. Purchases and sales of ownership interests
in the debt securities will be accomplished by entries on the books of direct and indirect participants in DTC�s system.

Under the terms of the indentures, we and the indenture trustee may treat the persons in whose names any notes,
including the global notes, are registered as the owners of such notes for the purpose of receiving payments and for all
other purposes. Therefore, so long as DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the global notes, DTC or its
nominee will be considered the sole holder of outstanding notes under the indentures.

A global note may not be transferred except as a whole by DTC, its successors or their respective nominees. Interests
of beneficial owners in the global note may be transferred or exchanged for definitive securities in accordance with the
rules and procedures of DTC. In addition, a global note may be exchangeable for notes in definitive form if DTC
notifies us that it is unwilling or unable to continue as a depositary and we do not appoint a successor within 90 days,
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or if we, at our option, notify the indenture trustee in writing that we elect to cause the issuance of notes in definitive
form under the applicable indenture. In each instance, upon surrender by DTC or its nominee of the global note, notes
in definitive form will be issued to each person that DTC or its nominee identifies as being the beneficial owner of the
related notes.
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Except as otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, for so long as DTC or its nominee is the
registered owner of a global note, owners of beneficial interests in the global note: (i) will not be entitled to have any
of the individual debt securities of the series represented by the global note registered in their names; (ii) will not
receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of any of those debt securities in definitive form; and (iii) will not be
considered the owners or holders of those debt securities under the applicable indenture.

Payment of the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, debt securities represented by a global note will be
made to DTC or its nominee as the registered owner of the global note representing those debt securities. We expect
that DTC or its nominee, upon receipt of any payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest in respect of the
global note representing those debt securities, will immediately credit participants� accounts with payments in amounts
proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in the principal amount of the global note for those debt securities
as shown on the records of DTC or its nominee. We also expect that payments by participants to owners of beneficial
interests in the global note held through those participants will be governed by standing instructions and customary
practices, as is currently the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in �street name.� These payments
will be the responsibility of the participants. Neither we nor the indenture trustee will have any responsibility or
liability for any aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial ownership interests of
the global note for the debt securities or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to beneficial
ownership interests.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following summary describes the material features of our capital stock. This summary is subject to, and qualified
in its entirety by reference to, our Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (the �Articles�) and Amended and
Restated Regulations (the �Regulations�), each of which is filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this
prospectus is a part.

Authorized Capital Stock

Our authorized capital stock consists of 58,000,000 common shares, par value $.01 per share, and 2,000,000 preferred
shares, par value $.01 per share, of which 4,000 have been designated as 9.75% Series A Preferred Shares, par value
$.01 per share (the �Series A Preferred Shares�). As of September 30, 2016, there were 24,668,833 common shares
issued and outstanding, 2,423,890 common shares held by us in treasury and 2,000 preferred shares issued and
outstanding (all of which were Series A Preferred Shares).

Common Shares

Holders of our common shares are entitled to:

� one vote for each share held;

� receive dividends when, as and if declared by our board of directors from funds legally available therefor, subject to the rights of
holders of preferred shares, if any; and

� share ratably in our net assets legally available to our shareholders in the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, after
provision for the distribution of preferential amounts to the holders of preferred shares, if any.

Holders of our common shares have no preemptive, subscription, redemption, conversion, exchange or cumulative
voting rights. The rights, preferences and privileges of the holders of our common shares are subject to, and may be
adversely affected by, the rights, preferences and privileges of holders of our preferred shares, including any preferred
shares that we may designate and issue in the future.

Our common shares are listed on NYSE under the trading symbol �MHO.� Our outstanding common shares are, and any
common shares that we issue under this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement will be, when issued,
fully paid and nonassessable.

Preferred Shares

Our Articles authorize our board of directors to issue, without any further vote or action by our shareholders, subject
to certain limitations prescribed by law and the rules and regulations of NYSE, up to an aggregate of 2,000,000
preferred shares in one or more series. Our board of directors is also authorized to determine and fix the powers,
designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional and other special rights of each series of preferred
shares, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof, including the designation and authorized number of
each series, dividend rights, voting rights, conversion and exchange rights, redemption rights, liquidation rights,
sinking fund requirements, preemptive rights and restrictions on the issuance of shares. Absent a determination by our
board of directors to establish different voting rights, holders of preferred shares will be entitled to one vote per share
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on matters to be voted upon by the holders of common shares and preferred shares voting together as a single class,
except that the Ohio General Corporation Law entitles the holders of preferred shares to exercise a class vote on
certain matters.

Our board of directors will fix the powers, designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional and other
special rights of each series of preferred shares that we sell under this prospectus and any applicable prospectus
supplement, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions of such series, in a certificate of amendment to our
Articles relating to that series. We will file as an exhibit to the registration statement of which
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this prospectus is a part, or incorporate by reference therein from another report that we file with the SEC, the form of
any certificate of amendment to our Articles that describes the terms of the series of preferred shares that we are
offering before the issuance of the related series of preferred shares. We will also describe in the applicable prospectus
supplement the terms of the series of preferred shares being offered.

Our board of directors may authorize the issuance of preferred shares with voting, conversion or other rights that
could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of our common shares. The issuance of preferred
shares could have the effect of decreasing the market price of our common shares, decreasing the amount of earnings
and assets available for distribution to holders of our common shares and creating restrictions upon the payment of
dividends and other distributions to holders of our common shares. The issuance of preferred shares also could have
the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change in control of us without further action by our
shareholders. When we issue preferred shares under this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement, such
preferred shares will be fully paid and nonassessable.

Series A Preferred Shares

Pursuant to our Articles, 4,000 of our preferred shares have been designated as Series A Preferred Shares. On
March 15, 2007, we issued 4,000 Series A Preferred Shares, represented by 4,000,000 depositary shares, of which
2,000 Series A Preferred Shares, represented by 2,000,000 depositary shares, remain outstanding. See ��Depositary
Shares� below. The registration statement of which this prospectus is a part does not register any of our authorized but
unissued Series A Preferred Shares.

Dividends

Holders of Series A Preferred Shares receive when, as, and if declared by our board of directors, out of funds legally
available for payment of dividends under Ohio law, cash dividends. Dividends are payable quarterly in arrears on the
15th day of March, June, September and December of each year at an annual rate of 9.75% of the $25,000 liquidation
preference of each preferred share. Following a �change of control event,� as defined in our Articles, dividends on the
Series A Preferred Shares, when, as and if declared by us, will increase to an annual rate of 10.75% of the $25,000
liquidation preference per share. Dividends on the Series A Preferred Shares are not cumulative and, accordingly, if
for any reason we do not declare a dividend on the Series A Preferred Shares for a quarterly dividend period, holders
of the Series A Preferred Shares have no right to receive a dividend for that period, and we have no obligation to pay a
dividend for that period, whether or not we pay dividends in full or have sufficient funds to pay dividends in the
future. The Series A Preferred Shares rank senior to our common shares with respect to the payment of dividends. As
a result, unless dividends have been declared and paid or set apart on the Series A Preferred Shares for the
then-current quarterly dividend period, no dividends may be declared or paid or set apart for payment on our common
shares for that period, other than dividends or distributions paid in our common shares, or options, warrants or rights
to subscribe for or purchase our common shares or any of our other equity ranking junior to the Series A Preferred
Shares as to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon our dissolution, liquidation or winding up.
We may, in our discretion, choose to pay dividends on the Series A Preferred Shares without paying any dividends on
our common shares or other junior equity.

Voting Rights

The Series A Preferred Shares have no voting rights, except with respect to those specified matters set forth in our
Articles or as otherwise required by the Ohio General Corporation Law. So long as any Series A Preferred Shares
remain outstanding, we will not, without the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the Series A
Preferred Shares:
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� authorize, create or issue any shares of capital stock ranking, as to dividends or upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, senior to
the Series A Preferred Shares, or reclassify any authorized shares of capital stock into any such shares of such capital stock, or issue
any obligation or security convertible into or evidencing the right to purchase any such shares of capital stock;
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� amend the terms of the Series A Preferred Shares in our Articles, whether by merger, consolidation or otherwise, so as to change the
express terms, or add express terms, in a manner substantially prejudicial to holders of the Series A Preferred Shares; or

� adopt any other amendment to our Articles that requires a vote of the holders of the shares of a particular class pursuant to
Section 1701.71(B) of the Ohio Revised Code.

Any increase in the amount of our authorized common shares or preferred shares, any increase or decrease in the
number of shares of any other series of preferred shares, or any authorization, creation and issuance of other classes or
series of common shares or other shares, in each case ranking equally with or junior to the Series A Preferred Shares
with respect to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up,
will not be deemed to be substantially prejudicial to the holders of the Series A Preferred Shares under the above
provisions.

Liquidation Preference

The Series A Preferred Shares rank senior to our common shares with respect to distribution of our assets upon our
liquidation, dissolution or winding up. Upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the holders of the Series A
Preferred Shares will be entitled to receive out of our assets available for distribution to shareholders, $25,000 per
share, plus any accrued and unpaid dividends for the then-current quarterly dividend period, before any payment or
distribution out of our assets may be made to or set apart for the holders of our common shares or other junior equity.
If, upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, our assets, or proceeds thereof, distributable among the holders of
the Series A Preferred Shares or any stock ranking equally with the Series A Preferred Shares is insufficient to pay in
full the preferential amounts to which such stock would be entitled, then such assets, or the proceeds thereof, will be
distributable among such holders ratably in accordance with the respective amounts which would be payable on such
shares if all amounts payable thereon were paid in full. Neither a consolidation nor merger of us, nor a sale, lease,
exchange or transfer of all or substantially all of our assets, will be deemed to be a liquidation, dissolution or winding
up under the above provisions.

Redemption

We may, at our option, redeem the Series A Preferred Shares, in whole or, from time to time, in part, upon not less
than 30 nor more than 60 days� notice, at a redemption price per share equal to the liquidation preference, plus accrued
and unpaid dividends (whether or not earned or declared) from the dividend payment date immediately preceding the
redemption date to but excluding the redemption date; provided, however, that any redemption that would reduce the
aggregate liquidation preference of the Series A Preferred Shares outstanding to less than $25 million in the aggregate
would be restricted to a redemption in whole only. If we choose to redeem less than all the Series A Preferred Shares,
we will either determine the Series A Preferred Shares to be redeemed by lot or pro rata in such manner as our board
of directors deems equitable. There is no sinking fund for the redemption or purchase of the Series A Preferred Shares.
Holders of the Series A Preferred Shares have no right to require the redemption of the Series A Preferred Shares.

Maturity; Conversion; Preemptive Rights

The Series A Preferred Shares do not have a maturity date, and we are not required to redeem, or set aside funds to
redeem, the Series A Preferred Shares. Accordingly, the Series A Preferred Shares will remain outstanding
indefinitely unless we decide to redeem them. The Series A Preferred Shares are not convertible into, or exchangeable
for, shares of any other securities or property. The Series A Preferred Shares have no preemptive rights.

Depositary Shares
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Our outstanding Series A Preferred Shares are represented by depositary shares, with each depositary share
representing 1/1,000th of a Series A Preferred Share. The depositary shares are evidenced by depositary receipts,
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and the underlying Series A Preferred Shares have been deposited pursuant to a deposit agreement among us,
Computershare Trust Company, N.A., as depositary, and the holders from time to time of the depositary receipts.
Subject to the terms of the deposit agreement, the depositary shares are entitled to all the rights and preferences of the
Series A Preferred Shares in proportion to the applicable fraction of a preferred share represented by such depositary
share.

The depositary will distribute all cash dividends and other cash distributions paid with respect to the Series A
Preferred Shares to the holders of record of the depositary receipts in proportion to the number of depositary shares
held by each holder.

Because each depositary share represents ownership of 1/1,000th of a Series A Preferred Share, and each Series A
Preferred Share is entitled to a vote per share based on its liquidation preference under the limited circumstances
described above, holders of depositary receipts will be entitled to 1/1,000th of such vote per depositary share under
such limited circumstances.

If we redeem the Series A Preferred Shares, in whole or in part, the corresponding depositary shares will also be
redeemed. The redemption price per depositary share will be equal to 1/1,000th of the redemption price per Series A
Preferred Share. If less than all the depositary shares are redeemed, we will select either by lot or pro rata those
depositary shares to be redeemed.

Underlying Series A Preferred Shares may be withdrawn, in whole but not in part, from the depositary arrangement
upon surrender of depositary receipts at the principal office of the depositary and upon payment of the taxes, charges
and fees provided for in the deposit agreement. Except as described in the deposit agreement, holders of withdrawn
Series A Preferred Shares will not be entitled to redeposit such shares or to receive depositary shares.

The outstanding depositary shares are listed on NYSE under the symbol �MHOPrA.� There is no separate public trading
market for the Series A Preferred Shares except as represented by the depositary shares. The depositary shares are
maintained in book-entry form registered in the name of the nominee of DTC.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our common shares and Series A Preferred Shares is Computershare Trust
Company, N.A. The transfer agent for any series of preferred shares that we may offer under this prospectus will be
named and described in the prospectus supplement for that series.

Anti-Takeover Effects of Articles, Regulations and the Ohio General Corporation Law

Certain provisions in our Articles and Regulations and the Ohio General Corporation Law could discourage potential
takeover attempts and make attempts by shareholders to change management more difficult. These provisions could
also adversely affect the market price of our securities.

Blank Check Preferred Shares. Our Articles authorize our board of directors to issue, without any further vote or
action by our shareholders, subject to certain limitations prescribed by law and the rules and regulations of NYSE, up
to an aggregate of 2,000,000 preferred shares in one or more classes or series. With respect to any classes or series, the
board of directors may determine the designation and the number of shares, rights, preferences, privileges,
qualifications and restrictions, including dividend rights, voting rights, conversion rights, redemption rights and
liquidation preferences. Absent a determination by the board of directors to establish different voting rights, holders of
preferred shares are entitled to one vote per share on matters to be voted upon by the holders of common shares and

Edgar Filing: S&W Seed Co - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 31



preferred shares voting together as a single class, except that the Ohio General Corporation Law entitles the holders of
preferred shares to exercise a class vote on certain matters. Our board of directors may authorize the issuance of
preferred shares with voting or conversion rights that could
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adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of our common shares. The issuance of preferred
shares could have the effect of decreasing the market price of our common shares. The issuance of preferred shares
also could have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change in control without further action by our
shareholders.

Classified Board of Directors. Our board of directors is divided into three classes, with regular three-year staggered
terms. This classification system increases the difficulty of replacing a majority of our directors and may tend to
discourage a third-party from making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to gain control of us. It also may maintain
the incumbency of our board of directors. In addition, our Regulations provide that the number of directors in each
class and the total number of directors may only be changed by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors or
the holders of record of at least 75% of our voting power. Under the Ohio General Corporation Law, shareholders may
not remove any directors on a classified board of directors, except for cause.

Limited Shareholder Action by Written Consent. Section 1701.54 of the Ohio General Corporation Law requires that
an action by written consent of the shareholders in lieu of a meeting be unanimous, except that, pursuant to
Section 1701.11, a corporation�s code of regulations may be amended by an action by written consent of holders of
shares entitling them to exercise two-thirds of the voting power of the corporation or, if the corporation�s articles of
incorporation or code of regulations otherwise provide, such greater or lesser amount, but not less than a majority. Our
Regulations provide that they may be amended or repealed without a meeting by the written consent of a majority of
our voting power; provided, however, that the affirmative vote of two-thirds of our voting power is required (whether
at a meeting or without a meeting by an action by written consent) to amend or repeal certain provisions of our
Regulations, as discussed below under ��Supermajority Voting Provisions.� This provision may have the effect of
delaying, deferring or preventing a tender offer or takeover attempt that a shareholder might consider to be in its best
interest.

Supermajority Voting Provisions. The affirmative vote of two-thirds of our voting power is required to amend or
repeal our Regulations, or to adopt a new code of regulations, with respect to any of the following:

� the requirements for calling special meetings of shareholders;

� the requirements for giving notice of annual or special meetings of shareholders;

� the provisions regarding our number of directors and our staggered board of directors;

� the provisions for filling vacancies or newly created directorships on our board of directors;

� the procedures for nominating directors;

� the provisions regarding conflicts of interest;

� the requirement that directors can only be removed for cause;
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� the indemnification provisions;

� our non-statutory Control Share Acquisition Act provisions; and

� amendments to these supermajority provisions.
In addition, the affirmative vote of 75% of our voting power is required to amend or repeal the provisions in our
Regulations regarding changes in the number of directors. On all other proposed amendments to our Regulations, the
required vote is a majority of our voting power.

Under the Ohio General Corporation Law, in the case of most mergers, sales of all or substantially all the assets of a
corporation and most amendments to a corporation�s articles of incorporation, the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the
voting power of the corporation is required unless the corporation�s articles of incorporation provide for a lower
amount not less than a majority. Our Articles do not change the default voting requirement provided by the Ohio
General Corporation Law.
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Shareholder Nominations. Our Regulations provide that shareholders seeking to nominate candidates for election as
directors at an annual or special meeting of shareholders must provide timely notice to us in writing. To be timely, a
shareholder�s notice must be received at our principal executive offices not less than 60 days nor more than 90 days
prior to the first anniversary of the date of the previous year�s annual meeting (or, if the date of the annual meeting is
changed by more than 30 days from the anniversary date of the preceding year�s annual meeting, or in the case of a
special meeting, within seven days after we mail the notice of the meeting or otherwise give notice of the
meeting). Our Regulations also prescribe the proper written form for a shareholder�s notice. These provisions may
preclude some shareholders from making nominations for directors at an annual or special meeting of shareholders.

Control Share Acquisition Act. Section 1701.831 of the Ohio General Corporation Law, known as the Control Share
Acquisition Act, provides that certain notice and informational filings, and special shareholder meeting and voting
procedures, must occur prior to any person�s acquisition of an issuer�s shares that would entitle the acquirer to exercise
or direct the voting power of the issuer in the election of directors within any of the following ranges:

� one-fifth or more (but less than one-third) of such voting power;

� one-third or more (but less than a majority) of such voting power; and

� a majority or more of such voting power.
The Control Share Acquisition Act does not apply to a corporation if its articles of incorporation or code of
regulations so provide. We have opted out of the application of the Control Share Acquisition Act. However, we have
adopted a substantially similar provision in our Regulations with one significant exception. Under our Regulations, no
shareholder meeting or vote is required if our board of directors has approved the proposed acquisition of voting
power. In addition, our Regulations provide our board of directors with more flexibility than provided by the Control
Share Acquisition Act in setting a date for the special meeting of shareholders to consider the proposed control share
acquisition.

NOL Protective Amendment. In March 2009, we amended our Regulations to impose certain restrictions on the
transfer of our common shares to preserve the tax treatment of our net operating losses and built-in losses (the �NOL
Protective Amendment�). The transfer restrictions imposed by the NOL Protective Amendment generally restrict
(unless otherwise approved by our board of directors) any direct or indirect transfer of our common shares if the effect
would be to: (i) increase the direct or indirect ownership of our common shares by any person or group of persons
from less than 5% to 5% or more of our common shares; or (ii) increase the percentage of our common shares owned
directly or indirectly by a person or group of persons owning or deemed to own 5% or more of our common shares.
The NOL Protective Amendment is intended to reduce the likelihood of an �ownership change� for purposes of
Section 382 of the Code that could limit our ability to utilize our net operating loss carryforwards and recognize
certain built-in losses and thereby adversely affect us. Although the basis for the NOL Protective Amendment is to
preserve the tax treatment of our net operating losses and built-in losses, the NOL Protective Amendment could be
deemed to have an �anti-takeover� effect because, among other things, it restricts the ability of a person or group of
persons to accumulate 5% or more of our common shares, and restricts the ability of a person or group of persons now
owning 5% or more of our common shares from acquiring additional common shares, without the approval of our
board of directors.
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DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES

The following description of the depositary shares representing our preferred shares sets forth certain general terms
that may apply to the depositary shares that we may offer under this prospectus. The specific terms of the depositary
shares and the related deposit agreement and depositary receipts will be described in the applicable prospectus
supplement relating to those depositary shares. We will file forms of the applicable deposit agreement and the
depositary receipts as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part or as exhibits to one or
more reports that we file with the SEC that are incorporated by reference therein. The specific terms of the depositary
shares and the related deposit agreement and depositary receipts as described in the applicable prospectus supplement
will supplement and, if applicable, may modify or replace the general terms described in this prospectus.

General

We may, at our option, elect to offer fractional preferred shares, rather than full preferred shares. If we exercise this
option, we will issue depositary receipts for depositary shares, each of which will represent a fractional interest of a
share of a particular series of preferred shares, as specified in the applicable prospectus supplement. We will deposit
with a depositary (the �preferred stock depositary�) preferred shares of each series represented by depositary shares and
enter into a deposit agreement with the preferred stock depositary and holders from time to time of the depositary
receipts issued by the preferred stock depositary which evidence the depositary shares. Subject to the terms of the
deposit agreement, each owner of a depositary receipt will be entitled, in proportion to the holder�s fractional interest
in the preferred shares, to all the rights and preferences of the series of the preferred shares represented by the
depositary shares (including dividend, voting, conversion, redemption and liquidation rights). The depositary shares
will be evidenced by depositary receipts issued pursuant to the deposit agreement. Depositary receipts will be issued
to those persons purchasing the fractional preferred shares in accordance with the terms of the deposit agreement as
described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Dividends and Other Distributions

The preferred stock depositary will distribute all cash dividends or other cash distributions received in respect of the
preferred shares underlying the depositary shares to the record holders of depositary receipts in proportion to the
number of the depositary receipts owned by the holders. The relevant record date for depositary shares will be the
same date as the record date for the preferred shares.

In the event of a distribution other than in cash, the preferred stock depositary will distribute property received by it to
the record holders of depositary receipts in proportion to the number of the depositary receipts owned by the holders.
If the preferred stock depositary determines that it is not feasible to make such distribution, the preferred stock
depositary may, with our approval, sell the property and distribute the net proceeds from the sale to the holders of
depositary receipts.

If we offer to the holders of a series of preferred shares represented by the depositary shares any rights, preferences or
privileges to subscribe for or purchase any securities, or any other rights, preferences or privileges, the preferred stock
depositary will make such rights, preferences or privileges available to the record holders of depositary shares either
by the issue of warrants representing such rights, preferences or privileges or by such other method as approved by the
preferred stock depositary and us. If the preferred stock depositary determines that such action is not lawful or feasible
or if it is instructed by a holder that such holder does not want to exercise such rights, preferences or privileges, it may
(with our approval in any case when the preferred stock depositary has determined that it is not feasible to make such
rights, preferences or privileges available) sell such rights, preferences or privileges and distribute the net proceeds
from such sale to the holders of depositary shares entitled to such proceeds.

Edgar Filing: S&W Seed Co - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 37



26

Edgar Filing: S&W Seed Co - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 38



Table of Contents

Withdrawal

Preferred shares represented by depositary shares may be withdrawn from the depositary arrangement upon surrender
of depositary receipts at the principal office of the preferred stock depositary and upon payment of the taxes, charges
and fees provided for in the deposit agreement. Subject to the terms of the deposit agreement, the holder of depositary
receipts will receive the appropriate number of preferred shares and any money or property represented by such
depositary shares. Only whole preferred shares may be withdrawn; if a holder holds an amount of depositary shares in
excess of whole preferred shares, the preferred stock depositary will deliver along with the withdrawn preferred shares
a new depositary receipt evidencing the excess number of depositary shares. Except as described in the deposit
agreement, holders of withdrawn preferred shares will not be entitled to redeposit such preferred shares or to receive
depositary shares for such preferred shares.

Redemption

If we redeem preferred shares held by the preferred stock depositary, the preferred stock depositary will concurrently
redeem the number of depositary shares representing the preferred shares so redeemed (provided that we have paid the
applicable redemption price for the preferred shares to be redeemed plus an amount equal to any accrued and unpaid
dividends to the date fixed for redemption). The redemption price per depositary share will be equal to the
corresponding proportion of the redemption price payable with respect to the preferred shares. If fewer than all the
outstanding depositary shares are to be redeemed, the depositary shares to be redeemed will be selected by lot or pro
rata (as nearly as may be practicable without creating fractional depositary shares) or as otherwise determined by us.

Voting

Upon receipt of notice of any meeting at which the holders of the preferred shares are entitled to vote, the preferred
stock depositary will mail the information contained in the notice of meeting to the record holders of the depositary
receipts. Each record holder of the depositary receipts on the record date (which will be the same date as the record
date for the preferred shares) will be entitled to instruct the preferred stock depositary as to the exercise of the voting
rights pertaining to the amount of preferred shares represented by the holder�s depositary shares. The preferred stock
depositary will vote the amount of preferred shares represented by the depositary shares in accordance with the
holder�s instructions, and we will agree to take all reasonable action necessary to enable the preferred stock depositary
to vote such shares. The preferred stock depositary will abstain from voting the amount of preferred shares represented
by the depositary shares for which it does not receive specific instructions from the holders of depositary receipts
evidencing the depositary shares.

Liquidation Preference

If we voluntarily or involuntarily liquidate, dissolve or wind up, the holders of depositary receipts will be entitled to
the fraction of the liquidation preference accorded each preferred share represented by the depositary shares, as set
forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Upon any change in par value or liquidation preference, split-up, combination or any other reclassification of the
series of preferred shares represented by the depositary shares, or upon any recapitalization, reorganization, merger or
consolidation affecting us or to which we are a party, the preferred stock depositary may in its discretion, with our
approval (not to be unreasonably withheld) and instructions, and in such manner as the preferred stock depositary may
deem equitable, treat any securities which are received by the preferred stock depositary in exchange for or upon
conversion or in respect of such preferred shares as new deposited securities received in exchange for or upon
conversion or in respect of such preferred shares and may make such adjustments in the fraction of an interest
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With our approval, the preferred stock depositary may execute and deliver additional depositary receipts, or may call
for the surrender of all outstanding depositary receipts to be exchanged for new depositary receipts specifically
describing such new deposited securities.

Amendment and Termination

We may amend the form of depositary receipt and any provision of the deposit agreement at any time by agreement
between us and the preferred stock depositary. However, any amendment that materially and adversely alters the
rights of the holders of depositary receipts or that would be materially and adversely inconsistent with the rights
granted to the holders of the related preferred shares will not be effective unless the holders of at least two-thirds of
the depositary shares evidenced by the depositary receipts then outstanding approve the amendment. No amendment
will impair the right, subject to the exceptions set forth in the deposit agreement, of any holder of depositary receipts
to surrender any depositary receipt with instructions to deliver to the holder the related preferred shares and all money
and other property, if any, represented by the depositary receipt, except in order to comply with law. Every holder of
an outstanding depositary receipt at the time any such amendment becomes effective will be deemed, by continuing to
hold the receipt, to consent and agree to the amendment and to be bound by the deposit agreement as amended.

We may terminate the deposit agreement upon not less than 30 days� prior written notice to the preferred stock
depositary if a majority of each series of preferred shares affected by the termination consents to the
termination. Upon termination, the preferred stock depositary will deliver or make available to each holder of
depositary receipts, upon surrender of the depositary receipts held by the holder, the number of whole and/or
fractional preferred shares represented by the depositary shares evidenced by the depositary receipts together with any
other property held by the preferred stock depositary with respect to the depositary receipt.

In addition, the deposit agreement will automatically terminate if:

� all outstanding depositary shares have been redeemed;

� there has been a final distribution in respect of the related preferred shares in connection with our liquidation, dissolution or winding
up and the distribution has been distributed to the holders of depositary receipts evidencing the depositary shares representing the
preferred shares; or

� each related preferred share has been converted into our common shares or other securities which are not represented by depositary
shares.

Charges of Preferred Stock Depositary

We will pay all transfer and other taxes and governmental charges arising solely from the existence of the deposit
agreement. In addition, we will pay the fees and charges of the preferred stock depositary in connection with the initial
deposit of the preferred shares, the initial issuance of the depositary shares, any redemption of the preferred shares and
all withdrawals of preferred shares by owners of depositary shares. All other transfer and other taxes and
governmental charges will be at the expense of the holders of depositary receipts. Holders of depositary receipts will
also pay the charges and expenses of the preferred stock depositary for any duties requested by the holders to be
performed which are outside of those expressly provided for in the deposit agreement. If those charges, expenses and
taxes have not been paid, the preferred stock depositary may refuse to transfer depositary shares or withdraw any
preferred shares, withhold dividends and distributions and sell the preferred shares or other property represented by
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Resignation and Removal of Preferred Stock Depositary

The preferred stock depositary may resign at any time by delivering to us notice of its election to resign, and we may
at any time remove the preferred stock depositary. Any such resignation or removal will take effect upon
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our appointment of a successor preferred stock depositary. We must appoint a successor preferred stock depositary
within 60 days after delivery of the notice of resignation or removal, and any preferred stock depositary must be a
bank or trust company having its principal office in the United States and having a combined capital and surplus of at
least $50,000,000.

Miscellaneous

The preferred stock depositary will forward to holders of depositary receipts any reports and communications that the
preferred stock depositary receives from us relating to the preferred shares. In addition, the preferred stock depositary
will make such reports and communications available for inspection by holders of depositary receipts at the principal
office of the preferred stock depositary, and at such other places as it may from time to time deem advisable.

We will not be liable, nor will the preferred stock depositary be liable, if we are prevented from or delayed, by law or
any circumstances beyond our control, in performing our obligations under the deposit agreement. Our obligations and
the obligations of the preferred stock depositary under the deposit agreement will be limited to performing our duties
in good faith and without negligence (only in the case of any action or inaction in the voting of preferred shares
represented by the depositary shares), gross negligence or willful misconduct. We will not be obligated, nor will the
preferred stock depositary be obligated, to prosecute or defend any legal proceeding in respect of any depositary
receipts, depositary shares or preferred shares represented by depositary shares unless satisfactory indemnity is
furnished. We may rely, and the preferred stock depositary may rely, on written advice of counsel or accountants, or
information provided by holders of depositary receipts or other persons believed in good faith to be competent to give
such information, and on documents reasonably believed to be genuine and signed or presented by a proper party.
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DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS

The following description of the warrants sets forth certain general terms that may apply to the warrants that we may
offer under this prospectus. The specific terms of any series of warrants and the related warrant agreement (including
the form of the warrant certificate) will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement relating to those
warrants. We will file the form of the applicable warrant agreement (including the form of the warrant certificate) as
an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part or as an exhibit to one or more reports that we
file with the SEC that are incorporated by reference therein. The specific terms of any series of warrants and the
related warrant agreement (including the form of the warrant certificate) as described in the applicable prospectus
supplement will supplement and, if applicable, may modify or replace the general terms described in this prospectus.

We may issue warrants to purchase debt securities, common shares, preferred shares, depositary shares or units of two
or more of those securities. We may issue warrants independently or together with any other securities we offer
pursuant to a prospectus supplement, and the warrants may be attached to or separate from such securities. We will
issue each series of warrants under a separate warrant agreement that we will enter into with a bank or trust company,
as warrant agent.

We will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement the terms of the warrants being offered and the applicable
warrant agreement (including the form of the warrant certificate), including the following:

� the title of the warrants;

� the aggregate number of warrants to be issued and currently outstanding, if any;

� the price or prices at which the warrants will be issued;

� the designation, number or amount and other terms of the securities issuable upon exercise of the warrants and the procedures and
conditions relating to the exercise of the warrants;

� the designation and terms of any related securities with which the warrants will be issued, and the number of warrants that will be
issued with each such security;

� the date, if any, on and after which the warrants and the related securities will be separately transferable;

� the price at which the securities purchasable upon exercise of the warrants may be purchased, and any provision for changes to or
adjustments in such price;

� the date on which the right to exercise the warrants will commence, and the date on which the right will expire;

� the minimum and maximum number of warrants which may be exercised at any time;
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� a discussion of material federal income tax considerations applicable to the exercise of the warrants; and

� any other material terms of the warrants, including terms, procedures and limitations relating to the transferability, exchange,
exercise or redemption of the warrants.

Each warrant will entitle its holder to purchase the securities at the exercise price set forth in the applicable prospectus
supplement. Holders may exercise warrants at any time up to the close of business on the expiration date set forth in
the applicable prospectus supplement. After the close of business on the expiration date, unexercised warrants will be
void.

Holders may exercise warrants as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. Upon receipt of payment and the
warrant certificate properly completed and duly executed at the corporate trust office of the
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warrant agent or any other office indicated in the prospectus supplement, we will, as soon as practicable, forward the
securities purchased upon such exercise. If less than all of the warrants represented by the warrant certificate are
exercised, we will issue a new warrant certificate for the remaining warrants.

Prior to the exercise of any warrants, holders of the warrants will not have any of the rights of holders of the securities
purchasable upon exercise, including:

� in the case of warrants for the purchase of debt securities, the right to receive payments of the principal of, or premium, if any, and
interest on, the debt securities purchasable upon exercise, or to enforce covenants in the applicable indenture; or

� in the case of warrants for the purchase of common shares, preferred shares or depositary shares, the right to vote or to receive any
payments of dividends on the common shares, preferred shares or depositary shares purchasable upon exercise.
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DESCRIPTION OF RIGHTS

The following description of the rights sets forth certain general terms that may apply to the rights that we may offer
under this prospectus. The specific terms of any rights and the related rights agreement (including the form of rights
certificate) will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement relating to those rights. We will file the form of
the applicable rights agreement (including the form of rights certificate) as an exhibit to the registration statement of
which this prospectus is a part or as an exhibit to one or more reports that we file with the SEC that are incorporated
by reference therein. The specific terms of any rights and the related rights agreement (including the form of rights
certificate) as described in the applicable prospectus supplement will supplement and, if applicable, may modify or
replace the general terms described in this prospectus.

We may issue rights to purchase debt securities, common shares, preferred shares or depositary shares that we may
offer to our securityholders. The rights may be issued independently or together with any other securities we offer,
and may or may not be transferable by the persons purchasing or receiving the rights. In connection with any rights
offering, we may enter into a standby underwriting or other arrangement with one or more underwriters or other
persons pursuant to which such underwriters or other persons may be required to purchase any offered securities
remaining unsubscribed for after such rights offering. Each series of rights will be issued under a separate rights
agreement which we will enter into with a bank or trust company, as rights agent, that we will name in the applicable
prospectus supplement. The rights agent will act solely as our agent in connection with the certificates representing
the rights and will not assume any obligation or relationship of agency or trust for or with any holders of rights
certificates or beneficial owners of rights.

The prospectus supplement relating to any rights that we offer will include the specific terms relating to the offering,
including, among other matters:

� the date of determining the securityholders entitled to the rights offering;

� the price, if any, for the rights;

� the aggregate number of rights to be issued and the designation, number or amount and other terms of the securities purchasable
upon exercise of the rights;

� the exercise price payable for the securities purchasable upon exercise of the rights, and any provisions for changes to or adjustments
in the exercise price;

� the date on which the holder�s ability to exercise the rights will commence and the date on which the rights will expire;

� the extent to which the rights will be transferable;

� the extent to which the rights may include an over-subscription privilege with respect to unsubscribed securities;
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� the material terms of any standby underwriting or purchase agreement entered into by us in connection with the rights offering;

� a discussion of material federal income tax considerations applicable to the exercise of the rights; and

� any other terms of the rights, including the terms, procedures, conditions and limitations relating to the distribution, exchange and
exercise of the rights.

Each right will entitle its holder to purchase the securities at the exercise price set forth in the applicable prospectus
supplement. Rights may be exercised at any time up to the close of business on the expiration date set forth in the
applicable prospectus supplement. After the close of business on the expiration date, all unexercised rights will
become void.

Holders may exercise rights as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. Upon receipt of payment and the
rights certificate properly completed and duly executed at the corporate trust office of the rights agent or
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any other office indicated in the prospectus supplement, we will, as soon as practicable, forward the securities
purchased upon such exercise. If less than all of the rights issued in any rights offering are exercised, we may offer
any unsubscribed securities directly to persons other than our securityholders, to or through agents, underwriters or
dealers or through a combination of such methods, including pursuant to standby arrangements, as described in the
applicable prospectus supplement.
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DESCRIPTION OF STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS

The following description of stock purchase contracts sets forth certain general terms that may apply to the stock
purchase contracts that we may offer under this prospectus. The specific terms of any stock purchase contracts will be
described in the applicable prospectus supplement relating to the stock purchase contracts. We will file forms of the
relevant documents as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part or as exhibits to one or
more reports that we file with the SEC that are incorporated by reference therein. The specific terms of any stock
purchase contracts as described in the applicable prospectus supplement will supplement and, if applicable, may
modify or replace the general terms described in this prospectus.

We may issue stock purchase contracts representing contracts obligating holders to purchase from us, and obligating
us to sell to the holders, a specified number of common shares, preferred shares or depositary shares at a future date or
dates. The price per common share, preferred share or depositary share may be fixed at the time the stock purchase
contracts are issued or may be determined by reference to a specific formula set forth in the stock purchase contracts.
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DESCRIPTION OF UNITS

We may issue units consisting of one or more debt securities, guarantees of debt securities, common shares, preferred
shares, depositary shares, warrants, rights, stock purchase contracts or any combination of such securities. The
applicable prospectus supplement for any units will describe:

� the terms of the units and of the debt securities, guarantees of debt securities, common shares, preferred shares, depositary shares,
warrants, rights, stock purchase contracts or any combination of such securities comprising the units, including whether and under
what circumstances the securities comprising the units may be traded separately;

� the terms of any unit agreement governing the units;

� a discussion of material federal income tax considerations applicable to the units; and

� the provisions for the payment, settlement, transfer or exchange or the units.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the securities offered under this prospectus from time to time:

� to or through underwriters;

� to or through dealers;

� through agents;

� directly to purchasers;

� in �at the market offerings� within the meaning of Rule 415(a)(4) of the Securities Act, to or through a market maker or into an
existing trading market, on an exchange, or otherwise;

� through a dividend, distribution, rights offering, forward contracts or similar arrangements;

� through a combination of any of these methods of sale; or

� through any other methods described in the applicable prospectus supplement.
The securities we distribute by any of these methods may be sold, in one or more transactions:

� at a fixed price or prices, which may be changed;

� at market prices prevailing at the time of sale;

� at prices related to prevailing market prices; or

� at negotiated prices.
Each time we offer securities under this prospectus, the applicable prospectus supplement will describe the specific
plan of distribution and the terms of the offering of the securities, including:

� the name or names of any underwriters, dealers or agents;
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� the purchase price of the securities and the proceeds we will receive from the sale;

� any over-allotment options under which underwriters may purchase additional securities from us;

� any discounts, concessions, commissions, agency fees and other items constituting underwriters�, dealers� or agents� compensation;

� any initial public offering price;

� any delayed delivery arrangements;

� any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers; and

� any securities exchange on which the securities may be listed.
We may sell securities from time to time to one or more underwriters, who would purchase the securities as principal
for resale to the public, either on a firm-commitment or best-efforts basis. If we sell securities to underwriters, we will
execute an underwriting agreement with the underwriters at the time of sale, and we will name the underwriters in the
applicable prospectus supplement. The obligations of the underwriters to purchase the securities will be subject to the
conditions set forth in the applicable underwriting agreement. The underwriters may resell the securities from time to
time in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions. The underwriters may sell the securities in order to
facilitate transactions in any of our other securities (described in this prospectus or otherwise), including other public
or private transactions and short sales. The underwriters may offer securities to the public either through underwriting
syndicates represented by one or more managing underwriters or directly by one or more firms acting as
underwriters. The underwriters may change from time to time any initial public offering price and any discounts or
concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers.
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In connection with sales to underwriters, the underwriters may be deemed to have received compensation from us in
the form of underwriting discounts or commissions and may also receive commissions from purchasers of the
securities for whom they may act as agents. Underwriters may resell the securities to or through dealers, and those
dealers may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from the underwriters and/or
commissions from purchasers for whom they may act as agents. The applicable prospectus supplement will include
any required information about underwriting compensation we pay to underwriters, and any discounts, concessions or
commissions underwriters allow to participating dealers, in connection with an offering of securities.

From time to time, we may sell securities to one or more dealers acting as principals. The dealers, who may be
deemed to be underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act, may then resell those securities to the public. The
applicable prospectus supplement will include the names of the dealers and the terms of the transaction.

We may solicit offers to purchase securities directly from the public from time to time. In this case, no underwriters or
agents would be involved. We may also designate agents from time to time to solicit offers to purchase securities from
the public on our behalf. Such agents may be deemed to be underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act. The
applicable prospectus supplement relating to any particular offering of securities will name any agents designated to
solicit offers and will include information about any compensation we may pay the agents in connection with that
offering. Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, any agent will agree to use its
reasonable best efforts to solicit purchases for the period of its appointment.

We may sell the securities directly to institutional investors or others. These persons may be deemed to be
underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act with respect to any sale of those securities. The terms of any
such direct sales will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

We may make direct sales of the securities through subscription rights distributed to our existing securityholders on a
pro rata basis, which may or may not be transferable. In any distribution of subscription rights, if all of the underlying
securities are not subscribed for, we may then sell the unsubscribed securities directly to third parties or we may
engage the services of one or more underwriters, dealers or agents, including standby underwriters, to sell the
unsubscribed securities to third parties. The terms of any such sales or arrangements will be described in the
applicable prospectus supplement.

We may authorize underwriters, dealers and agents to solicit from certain types of institutional investors offers to
purchase securities under delayed delivery contracts providing for payment and delivery on future dates. The
applicable prospectus supplement will describe the material terms of these contracts, including any conditions to the
purchasers� obligations, and will include any required information about commissions we may pay for soliciting these
contracts.

We may authorize one or more �remarketing firms� to sell securities pursuant to a remarketing arrangement upon the
purchase of the securities. Remarketing firms will act as principals for their own accounts or as agents for us, and will
offer or sell the securities in accordance with a redemption or repayment pursuant to the terms of the securities, or
otherwise. The applicable prospectus supplement will identify any remarketing firm and describe the terms of its
compensation and agreements, if any, with us. Remarketing firms may be deemed to be underwriters within the
meaning of the Securities Act with respect to the securities they remarket.

Unless the applicable prospectus supplement states otherwise, the securities offered under this prospectus (other than
our common shares) will be a new issue of securities with no established trading market. We may elect to list any
series of offered securities on an exchange. Any underwriters that we use in the sale of offered securities may make a
market in such securities, but may discontinue such market making at any time without notice. Therefore, we cannot
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Any underwriters that we use in the sale of offered securities may engage in over-allotment, stabilizing transactions,
syndicate covering transactions and penalty bids in accordance with Regulation M under the Exchange
Act. Over-allotment involves sales in excess of the offering size, which create a short position. Stabilizing transactions
involve bids to purchase the underlying securities in the open market for the purpose of pegging, fixing or maintaining
the price of the securities. Syndicate covering transactions involve purchases of the securities, either through exercise
of the over-allotment option or in the open market after the distribution has been completed, in order to cover short
positions. Penalty bids permit the underwriters to reclaim a selling concession from a syndicate member when the
securities originally sold by the syndicate member are purchased in a syndicate covering transaction to cover short
positions. These activities may cause the price of the securities to be higher than it would be in the absence of the
transactions. The underwriters may, if they commence these transactions, discontinue them at any time.

Any underwriters, dealers or agents participating in the distribution of the offered securities may be deemed to be
underwriters under the Securities Act, and any compensation and profits received by such persons upon sale of the
securities may be deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions under the Securities Act. Underwriters,
dealers, agents and other persons may be entitled, under agreements that they may enter into with us, to
indemnification by us against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribution with
respect to payments that such persons make with respect to these liabilities. Our underwriters, dealers and agents, or
their affiliates, may be customers of, engage in transactions with, or perform services for, us in the ordinary course of
business.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the securities offered under this prospectus will be passed upon for us by Vorys, Sater, Seymour and
Pease LLP, Columbus, Ohio, unless the applicable prospectus supplement states otherwise.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2015, incorporated by reference in this prospectus, and the effectiveness of M/I Homes, Inc. and
subsidiaries� internal control over financial reporting have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports, which are incorporated herein by reference. Such
consolidated financial statements have been so incorporated in reliance upon the reports of such firm given upon their
authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

This prospectus is part of a registration statement on Form S-3 that we filed with the SEC registering the securities
that may be offered hereunder. As permitted by SEC rules, this prospectus does not contain all of the information we
have included in the registration statement. A copy of the registration statement can be obtained at the address set
forth below. You should read the registration statement for more information about our securities and us.

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act and file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy
statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the
SEC�s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You can request copies of these
documents, upon payment of a duplicating fee, by writing to the SEC. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for
further information on the operation of the Public Reference Room. The SEC also maintains a website that contains
reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers, like us, who file electronically with
the SEC. The address of the SEC�s website is www.sec.gov. Our common shares and the depositary shares
representing our Series A Preferred Shares are listed on NYSE, and similar information concerning us can also be
inspected and copied at the offices of NYSE at 20 Broad Street, New York, NY 10005.

Our website address is www.mihomes.com. We make available, free of charge, on or through our website, our annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K that are filed with or
furnished to the SEC, and amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file
such reports with, or furnish them to, the SEC. The contents of our website are not part of this prospectus, and the
reference to our website does not constitute incorporation by reference in this prospectus of the information contained
at that site.
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INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to �incorporate by reference� information in this prospectus. This means that we can disclose
important information to you by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. The following
documents that we have filed with the SEC are incorporated by reference in, and considered a part of, this prospectus:

� our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015;

� our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2016, June 30, 2016 and September 30, 2016;

� our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 4, 2016, May 5, 2016 and June 28, 2016; and

� the description of our common shares, $.01 par value per share, contained in our Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File
No. 333-176088) filed with the SEC on August 5, 2011, or contained in any subsequent amendment or report filed for the purpose of
updating such description.

We are also incorporating by reference in this prospectus all documents (other than current reports furnished under
Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 of Form 8-K and exhibits filed on such form that are related to such items) that we file with the
SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the date of this prospectus and prior to
the termination or completion of any offering of securities under this prospectus and all applicable prospectus
supplements, and all such filings made after the date of the initial registration statement of which this prospectus is a
part and prior to the effectiveness of such registration statement.

We will provide to each person to whom this prospectus is delivered, upon written or oral request and without charge,
any of the above documents that are incorporated by reference in this prospectus (including any exhibits that are
specifically incorporated by reference in such documents). Requests should be directed to:

M/I Homes, Inc.

3 Easton Oval, Suite 500

Columbus, Ohio 43219

Attn: Chief Legal Officer

(614) 418-8000

Any statement contained in this prospectus or in a document incorporated by reference in this prospectus will be
deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus to the extent that a statement contained in the
applicable prospectus supplement or any other subsequently filed document that is deemed to be incorporated by
reference in this prospectus modifies or supersedes such statement. Any statement so modified or superseded will not
be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus.
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PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution
The following table sets forth the estimated (except for the SEC registration fee) fees and expenses payable by us in
connection with the sale and distribution of the securities registered hereunder (excluding any underwriting discounts
and commissions):

SEC registration fee �
Printing and engraving expenses *
Legal fees and expenses *
Accounting fees and expenses *
Transfer agent fees and expenses *
Trustee fees and expenses *
Total *

� M/I Homes, Inc. (�M/I Homes�) filed a Registration Statement on Form S-3 on October 30, 2013, as amended by Pre-Effective Amendment
No. 1 thereto filed on December 9, 2013, and as further amended by Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2 thereto filed on December 13, 2013 and
declared effective on December 23, 2013 (File No. 333-191989) (the �Prior Registration Statement�), which registered an aggregate of
$400,000,000 of the types of securities registered on this Registration Statement, all of which remain unsold (the �Unsold Securities�). Pursuant
to Rule 415(a)(6) under the Securities Act, this Registration Statement consists of the Unsold Securities and the $51,520.00 registration fee
previously paid by M/I Homes in connection with the Unsold Securities will continue to be applied to the Unsold Securities. This Registration
Statement includes no new securities, other than the guarantees of M/I Homes� obligations under its debt securities by certain of its
wholly-owned subsidiaries that are not registrants under the Prior Registration Statement and for which no registration fee is payable pursuant
Rule 457(n) under the Securities Act. As a result, no additional filing fee is being paid herewith.

* These fees and expenses are based on the number and type of issuances and the amount of securities offered, and, accordingly cannot be
estimated at this time. The applicable prospectus supplement will set forth the estimated amount of fees and expenses payable in connection
with any offering of securities.

Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers
The following summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete text of the statutes referred to below,
the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation and the Amended and Restated Regulations of M/I Homes and
the organizational documents of each of the co-registrants.

M/I Homes, Inc.

Under Section 1701.13(E) of the Ohio General Corporation Law (the �OGCL�), directors, officers, employees and
agents of an Ohio corporation have an absolute right to indemnification for expenses (including attorneys� fees)
actually and reasonably incurred by them in any action, suit or proceeding to the extent they are successful, on the
merits or otherwise, in defense of the action, suit or proceeding, including derivative actions, brought against them, or
in defense of any claim, issue or matter asserted in any such proceeding.
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Section 1701.13(E) of the OGCL permits a corporation to indemnify its directors, officers, employees or agents or
individuals who are or were serving at the request of the corporation as a director, trustee, officer, employee, member,
manager or agent of another corporation or entity in circumstances where indemnification is not mandated by the
statute if certain statutory standards are satisfied. A corporation may grant indemnification in any threatened, pending
or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, investigative or administrative, other than derivative
actions, if the indemnitee acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed
to, the best interests of the corporation, and with respect to any

II-1

Edgar Filing: S&W Seed Co - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 61



Table of Contents

criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful. Such
indemnification is permitted against expenses (including attorneys� fees) as well as judgments, fines and amounts paid
in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the indemnitee in connection with the action, suit or proceeding.

Under Section 1701.13(E), a corporation may also provide indemnification in derivative actions for expenses
(including attorneys� fees) actually and reasonably incurred in connection with the defense or settlement of an action or
suit if the officer, director, employee or agent acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to
be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the corporation. Ohio law does not expressly authorize indemnification
against judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement of derivative actions. A corporation may not indemnify a
director, officer, employee or agent in derivative actions for expenses (including attorneys� fees) if such person is
adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of such person�s duties to the corporation,
unless and only to the extent that the court in which the proceeding was brought determines that, despite the
adjudication of liability, but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled
to indemnity as the court deems proper. In addition, a corporation may not indemnify a director in any action or suit in
which the only liability asserted against the director is for approving unlawful loans, dividends or distributions of
assets under Section 1701.95 of the OGCL.

Section 1701.13(E) of the OGCL permits a corporation to pay expenses (including attorneys� fees) incurred by a
director, officer, employee or agent as they are incurred, in advance of the final disposition of the action, suit or
proceeding, as authorized by the corporation�s directors and upon receipt of an undertaking by such person to repay
such amount if it is ultimately determined that such person is not entitled to indemnification.

Section 1701.13(E) of the OGCL states that the indemnification provided thereby is not exclusive of, and is in
addition to, any other rights granted to persons seeking indemnification under a corporation�s articles or regulations,
any agreement, a vote of the corporation�s shareholders or disinterested directors, or otherwise. In addition,
Section 1701.13(E) of the OGCL grants express power to a corporation to purchase and maintain insurance or furnish
similar protection, including trust funds, letters of credit and self-insurance, for director, officer, employee or agent
liability, regardless of whether that individual is otherwise eligible for indemnification by the corporation.

M/I Homes� Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation (the �Articles�) provide that M/I Homes shall, to the fullest
extent not prohibited by law, indemnify each director and officer against any and all costs and expenses (including
attorney fees, judgments, fines, penalties, amounts paid in settlement, and other disbursements) actually and
reasonably incurred by or imposed upon such person in connection with any action, suit, investigation or proceeding
(or any claim or other matter therein), whether civil, criminal, administrative or otherwise in nature, including any
settlements or appeals thereof, with respect to which such person is named or otherwise becomes or is threatened to be
made a party by reason of being or at any time having been a director or officer of M/I Homes, or by any reason of
being or at any time having been, while such a director or officer, an employee or other agent of M/I Homes or, at the
direction or request of M/I Homes, a director, trustee, officer, administrator, manager, employee, adviser or other
agent of or fiduciary for any other corporation, partnership, trust, venture or other entity or enterprise (including any
employee benefit plan). The Articles further provide that (i) M/I Homes shall indemnify any other person to the extent
such person is entitled to indemnification under Ohio law by reason of being successful on the merits or otherwise in
defense of an action to which such person is named a party by reason of being an employee or other agent of M/I
Homes and (ii) M/I Homes may further indemnify any such person if it is determined by the board of directors of M/I
Homes that indemnification is proper in the specific case.

Under M/I Homes� Amended and Restated Regulations (the �Regulations�), M/I Homes shall indemnify any officer or
director who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit
or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (including any derivative action), by reason of
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manager or agent of another corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise,
against expenses (including attorneys� fees, filing fees, court reporters� fees and transcript costs), judgments, fines and
amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or
proceeding if such person acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to
the best interests of M/I Homes. A person claiming such indemnification shall be presumed, in respect of any act or
omission giving rise to such claim for indemnification, to have acted in good faith and in a manner such person
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of M/I Homes. The Regulations state that any such
indemnification, unless ordered by a court, shall be made only upon a determination that the director or officer has
met the applicable standard of conduct, and such determination shall be made (i) by a majority vote of a quorum
consisting of disinterested directors, (ii) in a written opinion by qualified independent legal counsel or (iii) by the
shareholders.

The Regulations provide that, to the extent that an officer or director has been successful on the merits or otherwise in
defense of any action, suit or proceeding, such person shall be promptly indemnified against expenses (including
attorneys� fees, filing fees, court reporters� fees and transcript costs) actually and reasonably incurred by such person in
connection therewith. The Regulations further provide that expenses (including attorneys� fees, filing fees, court
reporters� fees and transcript costs) incurred in defending any action, suit or proceeding shall be paid by M/I Homes in
advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding to or on behalf of the officer or director promptly as
such expenses are incurred by such person if (i) in respect of any claim (except one in which the only liability asserted
against a director is for approving unlawful loans, dividends or distribution of assets under Section 1701.95 of the
OGCL), M/I Homes receives an undertaking by or on behalf of the director, in which such person agrees to repay all
such amounts if it is proved by clear and convincing evidence in a court of competent jurisdiction that such person�s
action or failure to act involved an act or omission undertaken with deliberate intent to cause injury to M/I Homes or
with reckless disregard for the best interests of M/I Homes, and such person agrees to cooperate reasonably with M/I
Homes concerning the action, suit or proceeding, or (ii) M/I Homes receives an undertaking by or on behalf of the
director or officer in which such person agrees to repay all such amounts if it ultimately is determined that such person
is not entitled to be indemnified.

The Regulations state that the indemnification provided thereby is not exclusive of, and is in addition to, any other
rights to which any person seeking indemnification may be entitled under any agreement, vote of shareholders or
disinterested directors, or otherwise. Additionally, the Regulations provide that M/I Homes may purchase and
maintain insurance or furnish similar protection, including but not limited to trust funds, letters of credit, or
self-insurance, on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of M/I Homes, or is or was
serving at the request of M/I Homes as a director, trustee, officer, employee, member, manager or agent of another
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against any liability asserted
against such person and incurred by such person in such capacity, or arising out of such person�s status as such,
whether or not M/I Homes would have the obligation or the power to indemnify such person under the Regulations.

Co-Registrants

Certain officers and other employees of M/I Homes serve at the request of M/I Homes as a director, officer, employee
or agent of the co-registrants, and thus may be entitled to indemnification under the provisions set forth above. In
addition to potential indemnification by M/I Homes, the directors, officers, employees and agents of the co-registrants
are also entitled to indemnification to the extent provided in the applicable co-registrant�s organizational documents or
under the laws under which the applicable co-registrant is organized as described below.
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Delaware Limited Liability Companies

Section 18-108 of the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act provides that, subject to such standards and
restrictions, if any, as set forth in its limited liability company agreement, a limited liability company may, and shall
have the power to, indemnify and hold harmless any member or manager or other person from and against any and all
claims and demands whatsoever.

M/I Homes Development I, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement of M/I
Homes Development I, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes Development II, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement of M/I
Homes Development II, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes Development III, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement of M/I
Homes Development III, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of Charlotte, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement of M/I
Homes of Charlotte, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of Chicago, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement of M/I Homes
of Chicago, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of DC, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement of M/I Homes of
DC, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of Delaware, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement of M/I
Homes of Delaware, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of DFW, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement of M/I Homes of
DFW, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of Houston, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement of M/I Homes
of Houston, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of Minneapolis/St. Paul, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement
of M/I Homes of Minneapolis/St. Paul, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of Raleigh, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement of M/I Homes
of Raleigh, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of San Antonio, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement of M/I
Homes of San Antonio, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of Sarasota, LLC. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company agreement of M/I Homes
of Sarasota, LLC do not address indemnification.

Northeast Office Venture, Limited Liability Company. The certificate of formation and the limited liability company
agreement of Northeast Office Venture, Limited Liability Company do not address indemnification.
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Florida Limited Liability Companies

Section 608.4229 of the Florida Limited Liability Company Act provides that, subject to such standards and
restrictions, if any, as are set forth in its articles of organization or operating agreement, and except with respect to
certain criminal or improper acts and unlawful distributions, a limited liability company may, but is not required to,
indemnify and hold harmless any member or manager or other person from and against any and all claims and
demands whatsoever.
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MHO Holdings, LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of MHO Holdings, LLC do not
address indemnification.

MHO, LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of MHO, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of Florida, LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of M/I Homes of Florida, LLC
do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of Orlando, LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of M/I Homes of Orlando,
LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of Tampa, LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of M/I Homes of Tampa, LLC
do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of West Palm Beach, LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of M/I Homes of
West Palm Beach, LLC do not address indemnification.

Indiana Limited Liability Companies

Chapter 2, Section 2 of the Indiana Business Flexibility Act (the �IBFA�) provides that, unless the limited liability
company�s articles of organization provide otherwise, every limited liability company has the power to indemnify and
hold harmless any member, manager, agent, or employee from and against any and all claims and demands, except in
the case of action or failure to act by the member, agent, or employee which constitutes willful misconduct or
recklessness and subject to any standards and restrictions set forth in a written operating agreement. Chapter 4,
Section 4 of the IBFA provides that a written operating agreement may provide for indemnification of a member or
manager of a limited liability company for judgments, settlements, penalties, fines or expenses incurred in a
proceeding to which a person is a party because the person is or was a member or manager.

M/I Homes First Indiana LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of M/I Homes First Indiana
LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes Second Indiana LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of M/I Homes Second
Indiana LLC do not address indemnification.

Indiana Limited Partnership

Chapter 2, Section 9 of the Indiana Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act provides that a domestic or foreign
limited partnership may indemnify a person made a party to an action because the person is or was a partner,
employee, officer or agent of the partnership against liability incurred in the action if (i) the person�s conduct was in
good faith and (ii) the person reasonably believed (A) in the case of conduct in the person�s capacity as a partner, that
the person�s conduct was in the best interests of the partnership and (B) in all other cases, that the person�s conduct was
at least not opposed to the best interests of the limited partnership or foreign limited partnership and (iii) in the case of
any criminal action, the person either (A) had reasonable cause to believe the person�s conduct was lawful or (B) had
no reasonable cause to believe the person�s conduct was unlawful. The foregoing provisions do not exclude any other
rights to indemnification that a partner, employee, officer, or agent of the domestic or foreign limited partnership may
have under the partnership agreement or with the written consent of all partners. To the extent it is not inconsistent
with the foregoing, Section 18 of the Indiana Uniform Partnership Act provides that, subject to any agreement
between the partners, partnerships must indemnify every partner in respect of payments made and personal liabilities
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preservation of the partnership�s business or property.

M/I Homes of Indiana, L.P. The certificate of limited partnership of M/I Homes of Indiana, L.P. does not address
indemnification. The limited partnership agreement of M/I Homes of Indiana, L.P. provides that, to the
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fullest extent permitted by law, on request by the person to be indemnified, the partnership must indemnify the general
partner and its members, managers, officers, employees and agents and hold them harmless from and against all
losses, costs, liabilities, damages and expenses (including, without limitation, costs of suit and attorneys� fees) the
general partner may incur as a general partner in the partnership or any of them may incur in performing the
obligations of the general partner with respect to the partnership, and on request by the person to be indemnified, the
partnership must advance expenses associated with defense of any related action; provided, however, that this
indemnity does not apply to actions constituting bad faith, gross negligence, willful misconduct or a breach of the
provisions of the limited partnership agreement or actions as to which the conduct of such person was not in the best
interests of the partnership or the person had reasonable cause to believe the action was unlawful.

Maryland Limited Liability Companies

Section 203 of the Maryland Limited Liability Company Act provides that, unless otherwise provided by law or its
articles of organization, a limited liability company has the general powers, whether or not set forth in its articles of
organization, to indemnify and hold harmless any member, agent, or employee from and against any and all claims
and demands, except in the case of action or failure to act by the member, agent, or employee which constitutes willful
misconduct or recklessness, and subject to the standards and restrictions, if any, set forth in the articles of organization
or operating agreement.

Prince Georges Utilities, LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of Prince Georges Utilities,
LLC do not address indemnification.

The Fields at Perry Hall, L.L.C. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of The Fields at Perry Hall,
L.L.C. do not address indemnification.

Wilson Farm, L.L.C. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of Wilson Farm, L.L.C. do not address
indemnification.

Ohio Limited Liability Companies

Section 1705.32 of the Ohio Limited Liability Company Act (the �OLLCA�) provides that a limited liability company
may indemnify any person who was or is a party, or who is threatened to be made a party, to any action, suit or
proceeding because such person is or was a manager, member, partner, officer, employee or agent of the company, or
is or was serving at the company�s request as a manager, director, trustee, officer, employee or agent of another entity,
against expenses (including attorneys� fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement that were actually and
reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if such person acted in good
faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the company and,
in connection with any criminal action or proceeding, such person had no reasonable cause to believe that his or her
conduct was unlawful. In the case of an action or suit by or in the right of the company to procure a judgment in its
favor, a limited liability company may indemnify such person against expenses (including attorneys� fees) that were
actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with the defense or settlement of the action or suit if
such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best
interests of the company; provided, however, that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or
matter as to which such person is adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his or her
duty to the company unless and only to the extent that the court of common pleas or the court in which the action or
suit was brought determines, upon application, that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all the
circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnification for expenses that the court
considers proper. To the extent that a manager, officer, employee or agent of a limited liability company has been

Edgar Filing: S&W Seed Co - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 70



successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit, proceeding, claim, issue or matter referred to
above, the limited liability company must indemnify such person against expenses (including attorneys� fees) that were
actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding. The
indemnification authorized by Section 1705.32 of the OLLCA is not exclusive of and shall be in addition to any other
rights
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granted to those seeking indemnification, both as to action in their official capacities and as to action in another
capacity while holding their offices or positions. Section 1705.32 of the OLLCA also provides that a limited liability
company may purchase and maintain insurance or furnish similar protection for or on behalf of any person who is or
was a manager, director, trustee, officer, employee or agent of the company or who is or was serving at the request of
the company as a manager, director, trustee, officer, employee or agent of another entity.

M/I Homes of Austin, LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of M/I Homes of Austin, LLC
do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of Central Ohio, LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of M/I Homes of Central
Ohio, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes of Cincinnati, LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of M/I Homes of
Cincinnati, LLC do not address indemnification.

M/I Homes Service, LLC. The articles of organization and the operating agreement of M/I Homes Service, LLC do
not address indemnification.

Director and Officer Insurance Maintained by M/I Homes

M/I Homes maintains insurance policies under which directors and officers of M/I Homes and its subsidiaries
(including the co-registrants) are insured, within the limits and subject to the limitations of such policies, against
expenses in connection with the defense of actions, suits or proceedings, and certain liabilities that might be imposed
as a result of such actions, suits or proceedings, to which they are parties by reason of being or having been directors
or officers of M/I Homes or its subsidiaries.

Item 16. Exhibits
See the Exhibit Index attached to this Registration Statement, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 17. Undertakings

(a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made of the securities registered hereby, a post-effective
amendment to this Registration Statement;

(i) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

(ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most
recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the
information set forth in the Registration Statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume
of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any
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deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus
filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no
more than a 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the �Calculation of Registration Fee� table
in the effective registration statement; and

(iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the Registration
Statement or any material change to such information in the Registration Statement;

provided, however, that the undertakings set forth in paragraphs (a)(1)(i), (a)(1)(ii) and (a)(1)(iii) above do not apply if
the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained
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in reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement, or is contained in a
form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is a part of the registration statement.

(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall
be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at
that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain
unsold at the termination of the offering.

(4) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:

(i) Each prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration
statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and

(ii) Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) as part of a registration statement in
reliance on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii), or (x) for the purpose of
providing the information required by Section 10(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of and
included in the registration statement as of the earlier of the date such form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness
or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering described in the prospectus. As provided in Rule
430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to
be a new effective date of the registration statement relating to the securities in the registration statement to which that
prospectus relates, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering
thereof. Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the
registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration
statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale
prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus
that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date.

(5) That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial
distribution of the securities: The undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned
registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the
purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the
undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

(i) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed
pursuant to Rule 424;

(ii) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or used or
referred to by the undersigned registrant;

(iii)
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The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the
undersigned registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and

(iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.
(b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities
Act of 1933, each filing of the registrant�s annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of
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the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan�s annual report
pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the registration
statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering
of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(c) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to supplement the prospectus, after the expiration of the subscription
period, to set forth the results of the subscription offer, the transactions by the underwriters during the subscription
period, the amount of unsubscribed securities to be purchased by the underwriters, and the terms of any subsequent
reoffering thereof. If any public offering by the underwriters is to be made on terms differing from those set forth on
the cover page of the prospectus, a post-effective amendment will be filed to set forth the terms of such offering.

(d) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors,
officers or controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions or otherwise, the registrant has
been informed that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public
policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against
such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or
controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such
director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in
the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate
jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be
governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

(e) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that:

(1) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed
as part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrant
pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the
time it was declared effective.

(2) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of
prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such
securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(f) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to file an application for the purpose of determining the eligibility of
the trustee to act under subsection (a) of Section 310 of the Trust Indenture Act (the �Act�) in accordance with the rules
and regulations prescribed by the Commission under Section 305(b)(2) of the Act.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to
believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Columbus, State of Ohio, on
October 28, 2016.

M/I HOMES, INC.

By: /s/ ROBERT H. SCHOTTENSTEIN

Name: Robert H. Schottenstein
Title: Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer

and President
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned directors and/or officers of M/I Homes, Inc. (the �Company�) hereby constitutes and appoints
Robert H. Schottenstein, Phillip G. Creek and J. Thomas Mason, and each of them, as his or her true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact and agents, each with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her
name, place and stead in the capacities indicated below, to do any and all acts and things, and to execute any and all
instruments, which said attorneys-in-fact or agents, or any of them, may deem necessary or advisable to enable the
Company to comply with the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and any rules, regulations and requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, in connection with the filing of this Registration Statement on Form S-3,
including specifically but without limitation, power and authority to sign for him or her in his or her name in the
capacities indicated below, any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to such Registration
Statement and any registration statements relating to the same offering filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and all documents in connection
therewith, including requests to accelerate the effectiveness of each registration statement, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission; and he or she does hereby ratify and confirm all that the said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or
their substitute or substitutes, or any of them, shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the
following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name and Signature Title Date

/s/ ROBERT H. SCHOTTENSTEIN

Robert H. Schottenstein

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and
President (Principal Executive Officer)

October 28, 2016

/s/ PHILLIP G. CREEK

Phillip G. Creek

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Director

(Principal Financial Officer)

October 28, 2016

/s/ J. THOMAS MASON October 28, 2016
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J. Thomas Mason Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer,
Secretary and Director

/s/ ANN MARIE W. HUNKER

Ann Marie W. Hunker

Vice President and Corporate Controller (Principal
Accounting Officer)

October 28, 2016
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Name and Signature Title Date

/s/ FRIEDRICH K. M. BÖHM

Friedrich K. M. Böhm

Director October 28, 2016

/s/ WILLIAM H. CARTER

William H. Carter

Director October 28, 2016

/s/ MICHAEL P. GLIMCHER

Michael P. Glimcher

Director October 28, 2016

/s/ NANCY J. KRAMER

Nancy Kramer

Director October 28, 2016

/s/ NORMAN L. TRAEGER

Norman L. Traeger

Director October 28, 2016

/s/ SHAREN J. TURNEY

Sharen J. Turney

Director October 28, 2016
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, each co-registrant named below certifies that it has
reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Columbus, State of Ohio, October 28, 2016.

MHO HOLDINGS, LLC

M/I HOMES DEVELOPMENT I, LLC

M/I HOMES DEVELOPMENT II, LLC

M/I HOMES DEVELOPMENT III, LLC

M/I HOMES FIRST INDIANA LLC

M/I HOMES OF AUSTIN, LLC

M/I HOMES OF CENTRAL OHIO, LLC

M/I HOMES OF CHARLOTTE, LLC

M/I HOMES OF CHICAGO, LLC

M/I HOMES OF CINCINNATI, LLC

M/I HOMES OF DC, LLC

M/I HOMES OF DELAWARE, LLC

M/I HOMES OF DFW, LLC

M/I HOMES OF HOUSTON, LLC

M/I HOMES OF MINNEAPOLIS/ST.
PAUL, LLC

M/I HOMES OF ORLANDO, LLC

M/I HOMES OF RALEIGH, LLC

M/I HOMES OF SAN ANTONIO, LLC

M/I HOMES OF SARASOTA, LLC
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M/I HOMES OF TAMPA, LLC

M/I HOMES OF WEST PALM BEACH,
LLC

M/I HOMES SERVICE, LLC

NORTHEAST OFFICE VENTURE,
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRINCE GEORGES UTILITIES, LLC

THE FIELDS AT PERRY HALL, L.L.C.

WILSON FARM, L.L.C.

By: /s/ ROBERT H. SCHOTTENSTEIN

Name: Robert H. Schottenstein
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the
following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name and Signature Title Date

/s/ ROBERT H. SCHOTTENSTEIN

Robert H. Schottenstein

President, Chief Executive Officer

and Chairman of the Management

Committee (Principal Executive Officer)

October 28, 2016

/s/ PHILLIP G. CREEK

Phillip G. Creek

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Vice-Chairman of the Management Committee (Principal
Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

October 28, 2016
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Name and Signature Title Date

/s/ J. THOMAS MASON

J. Thomas Mason

Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer, Secretary and
Vice-Chairman of the Management Committee

October 28, 2016
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, each co-registrant named below certifies that it has
reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Columbus, State of Ohio, on October 28, 2016.

M/I HOMES OF FLORIDA, LLC

M/I HOMES SECOND INDIANA LLC

By: M/I HOMES, INC., its sole member

By: /s/ ROBERT H. SCHOTTENSTEIN

Name: Robert H. Schottenstein
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned directors and/or officers of M/I Homes, Inc. (the �Company�) hereby constitutes and appoints
Robert H. Schottenstein, Phillip G. Creek and J. Thomas Mason, and each of them, as his or her true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact and agents, each with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her
name, place and stead in the capacities indicated below, to do any and all acts and things, and to execute any and all
instruments, which said attorneys-in-fact or agents, or any of them, may deem necessary or advisable to enable the
Company to comply with the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and any rules, regulations and requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, in connection with the filing of this Registration Statement on Form S-3,
including specifically but without limitation, power and authority to sign for him or her in his or her name in the
capacities indicated below, any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to such Registration
Statement and any registration statements relating to the same offering filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and all documents in connection
therewith, including requests to accelerate the effectiveness of each registration statement, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission; and he or she does hereby ratify and confirm all that the said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or
their substitute or substitutes, or any of them, shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the
following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name and Signature Title Date

/s/ ROBERT H. SCHOTTENSTEIN

Robert H. Schottenstein

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and
President (Principal Executive Officer)

October 28, 2016

/s/ PHILLIP G. CREEK

Phillip G. Creek

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Director (Principal Financial Officer)

October 28, 2016
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/s/ J. THOMAS MASON

J. Thomas Mason

Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer,
Secretary and Director

October 28, 2016
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Name and Signature Title Date

/s/ ANN MARIE W. HUNKER

Ann Marie W. Hunker

Vice President and Corporate Controller (Principal
Accounting Officer)

October 28, 2016

/s/ FRIEDRICH K. M. BÖHM

Friedrich K. M. Böhm

Director October 28, 2016

/s/ WILLIAM H. CARTER

William H. Carter

Director October 28, 2016

/s/ MICHAEL P. GLIMCHER

Michael P. Glimcher

Director October 28, 2016

/s/ NANCY J. KRAMER

Nancy Kramer

Director October 28, 2016

/s/ NORMAN L. TRAEGER

Norman L. Traeger

Director October 28, 2016

/s/ SHAREN J. TURNEY

Sharen J. Turney

Director October 28, 2016
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the co-registrant named below certifies that it has
reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Columbus, State of Ohio, on October 28, 2016.

MHO, LLC

By: /s/ ROBERT H. SCHOTTENSTEIN

Name: Robert H. Schottenstein
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the
following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name and Signature Title Date

/s/ ROBERT H. SCHOTTENSTEIN

Robert H. Schottenstein

President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer)

October 28, 2016

/s/ PHILLIP G. CREEK

Phillip G. Creek

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting
Officer)

October 28, 2016

/s/ J. THOMAS MASON

J. Thomas Mason

Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer,
Secretary and Chairman of the Management Committee

October 28, 2016

/s/ FRED SIKORSKI

Fred Sikorski

Region President and Vice-Chairman of the
Management Committee

October 28, 2016

/s/ BILL MCDONOUGH, JR.

Bill McDonough, Jr.

Senior Vice President�Chief Marketing Officer and
Vice-Chairman of the Management Committee

October 28, 2016
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the co-registrant named below certifies that it has
reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this
Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Columbus, State of Ohio, on October 28, 2016.

M/I HOMES OF INDIANA, L.P.

By: M/I HOMES FIRST INDIANA, LLC,
its general partner
By: /s/ ROBERT H. SCHOTTENSTEIN

Name: Robert H. Schottenstein
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the
following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name and Signature Title Date

/S/ ROBERT H. SCHOTTENSTEIN

Robert H. Schottenstein

President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Management Committee (Principal Executive Officer)

October 28, 2016

/S/ PHILLIP G. CREEK

Phillip G. Creek

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Vice-Chairman of the Management Committee
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting
Officer)

October 28, 2016

/S/ J. THOMAS MASON

J. Thomas Mason

Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer,
Secretary and Vice-Chairman of the Management
Committee

October 28, 2016
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Name of Exhibit

  1.1* Form of underwriting or distribution agreement.

  3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of M/I Homes, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014 (File No. 1-12434)).

  3.2 Amended and Restated Regulations of M/I Homes, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Company�s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998 (File No. 1-12434)).

  3.3 Amendment to Article I(f) of the Amended and Restated Regulations of M/I Homes, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.1(b) to the Company�s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001 (File No. 1-12434)).

  3.4 Amendment to Article II(f) of the Amended and Restated Regulations of M/I Homes, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 13, 2009 (File No. 1-2434)).

  4.1 Specimen certificate representing M/I Homes, Inc.�s common shares, par value $.01 per share (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4 to the Company�s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 33-68564)).

  4.2 Specimen certificate representing M/I Homes, Inc.�s 9.75% Series A Preferred Shares, par value $.01 per share (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 15, 2007).

  4.3 Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2015, by and among M/I Homes, Inc., the guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee of M/I Homes, Inc.�s 6.75% Senior Notes due 2021 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 2, 2015).

  4.4 Form of 6.75% Senior Notes due 2021(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 2, 2015).

  4.5 Indenture, dated as of September 11, 2012, by and among the Company, the guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank
National Association, as Trustee [subordinated notes indenture] (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 11, 2012).

  4.6 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 11, 2012, by and among M/I Homes, Inc., the guarantors named therein and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee of M/I Homes, Inc.�s 3.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2017
(incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 11, 2012).

  4.7 Form of 3.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2017 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the
Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 11, 2012).

  4.8 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 11, 2013, by and among M/I Homes, Inc., the guarantors named therein and U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee of M/I Homes, Inc.�s 3.0% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2018
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on March 12, 2013).

  4.9 Form of 3.0% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2018 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the
Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on March 12, 2013).
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Exhibit
Number Name of Exhibit

  4.10� Form of indenture for senior debt securities.

  4.11* Form of senior debt security.

  4.12* Form of subordinated debt security.

  4.13* Form of guarantee.

  4.14* Certificate of amendment describing the terms of the preferred shares (including specimen certificate representing the
preferred shares).

  4.15* Form of deposit agreement (including form of depositary receipt).

  4.16* Form of warrant agreement (including form of warrant certificate).

  4.17* Form of rights agreement (including form of rights certificate).

  4.18* Form of stock purchase contract.

  4.19* Form of unit agreement (including form of unit).

  5.1� Opinion of Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP.

12.1� Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and
Preferred Stock Dividends.

23.1� Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

23.2� Consent of Vorys, Sater, Seymour and Pease LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1 to this registration statement).

24.1� Powers of Attorney (included on signature pages of this registration statement).

25.1** Statement of Eligibility of Trustee under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 on Form T-1 of the trustee to be named under the
indenture for senior debt securities.

25.2� Statement of Eligibility of Trustee under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 on Form T-1 of the trustee for subordinated debt
securities.

� Filed herewith.
* To the extent applicable, to be filed by an amendment to this registration statement or incorporated herein by reference pursuant to a

Current Report on Form 8-K to be filed by the registrant in connection with an offering of securities.
** To be filed separately on Form T-1 and incorporated herein by reference.
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